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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.

{0

|

= 1 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA

= SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A. (the “Bank™), which comprise the separate statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2011, and the separate income statement, the separate statement

- of comprehensive income, separate statement of changes in equity and separate statement of
\ cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

w explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

- 2 Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in
1 the European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
- enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

|

Auditor's Responsibility
; . 3 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
- We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
[ ; obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
- misstatement.

4 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

- disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control refevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

! circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
B evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
" basis for our audit opinion.

R
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Opinion
6 In our opinion, the separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2011, and of its financial performance and its cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted for use in the European Union.

ok & 7@»\%&»

Ernst and Young Assurance Services SRL
Bucharest, Romania

07 March 2012
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

SEPARATE INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2011 .

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless othetwise stated)

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net trading income
Other operating income
Total operating income

Credit loss expense

Net income from other financial
transactions -

Net Operating Income

Personnel expenses
Depreciation of property and
equipment

Amortization of intangible assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

(Loss)/Profit before tax
Income tax (expense}revenue

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Aftributable to:
Equity helders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Note 2011 2010 2010
As previously Restated
issued '

3 267,199,004 229,764,366 229,764,366
4 (127,780,155) {85,565,853) {85,565,853)
139,418,849 144,198,513 144,198,513
5 24,190,334 23,164,693 23,164,693
5 (7,916,423) (5,036,099) (5.036,099)
5 16,273,911 18,128,594 18,128,594
6 15,187,959 17,376,968 17,376,968
7 5,641,903 6,892,137 6,892,137
176,422,622 186,596,212 - 186,596,212
8 (195,802,534) {77,155,631) (77,155,631)

9 .
(253,293) (1,769,166) {1,769,166)
(19,633,205) 107,671,415 107,671,415
10 (62,720,213) (64,209,794) {64,209,794)

18

(14,102,146) {10,843,277) (11,942,174)
19 {4,455,239) {5,063,696) {(5,063,696)
11 (54,939,670) (76,452,002} (76,452,002)
(136,217,268)  (156,568,769)  (157,667,666)
(155,850,473) (48,897,354) {48,996,251)
12 14,827,605 5,660,377 5,998,509
{141,022,868) (43,236,977) (43,997,742)
{141,022,868) {43,236,977) (43,897,742)

The financial statements on pages 2 to 84 were approved and signed on behalf of the Board of

Directors on 7 March 2011 by:

Ezio Salvai
General Mangger

Catell

De Simone
Chlef nancial Officer

The accompanying notes on pages 7 o 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2011
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net gain/(loss) on available-for-sale
financial agsets

Income tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income

Cther comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/{loss)
for the year, net of tax

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Ezio Salvai
General Map@

Note 2011 2010 2010
As previously Restated

issued
(141,022,868) (43,236,977) (43,997,742)
{209,756) (17,216) (17,216)
33,561 2,755 2,755
{176,195) (14,461) (14,461)
(141,199,063) (43,251,438) (44,012,203)
(43,251,438) (44,012,203)

{141,199,063)

Cat
Chi

De Simone
inancial Officer

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2011

{All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei {(“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

'Cash and balance with central banks

Due from banks
Derivative financial instruments

Loans and advances to customers
Financial investments available-for-sale
Equity investments in Intesa Leasing

Property and equipment
Infangible assets
Deferred tax asseis
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Due to banks

Derivative financial instruments
Due 1o customers

Other borrowed funds

Current income tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Share premium
Accumulated deficit
Available-for-sale reserve
Other reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

As at
Note 2011 2010 1 January 2010
Restated Restated
13 558,219,950 509,516,437 400,722,279
14 156,765,340 194,733,945 18,722,711
15 195,818 10,623 609,740
16 3,042,126,564 2,956,322,661 2,330,900,544
17 385,113,090 149,098,295 154,348,038
17 8,745,616 8,745,612 2,400,612
18 119,336,875 109,836,199 113,535,121
19 9,495,095 11,436,981 11,916,428
12 17,744,884 2,883,717 -
20 16,989,149 12,657,080 25,016,914
4,314,732,381 3,955,241 ,550 3,058,172,387
21 432,034,317 950,970,586 421,429,121
15 48,138 144,355 846,431
22 1,859,542,413 1,508,764,569 1,000,217,284
23 1,064,581,051 839,085,826 975,960,375
- - 28,667
12 - - 3,149,795
24 16,802,371 17,445,313 9,784,691
25 17,730,014 11,653,641 10,566,559
3,390,738,304 3,328,064,290 2,511,982,923
26 854,285,910 416,285,910 291,285,910
251,628,890 251,628,890 251,628,890
27 (199,131,426) (58,108,559) (14,110,816)
28 14,834 191,030 205,491
28 17,195,869 17,179,989 17,179,988
923,994,077 627,177,260 546,189,463
923,994,077 627,177,260 546,189,463
4,314,732,381 3,955,241,550 3,058,172,386

The financial statements on pages 2 to 84 were approved and signed on behalf of the Board of
Directors on 7 March 2011 by: '

Chief Fingpncial Officer

Catello\;{;’]\Simone

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-ty
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Adiustments for:

Change in operating assets

Change in operating liabilities

Non-cash items included in profit before tax
Net gain / (loss) on investing activities

Net gain / (loss) on financial assets

Income tax paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of financial investments

Proceeds from sale of financial investments
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Dividends received .
Net cash flows from/{used in) investing activities

Financing activities

Repayment of other borrowed funds

Proceeds from other borrowed funds

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Net cash flows (used in)/from financial activities

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalent at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Operational cash flow from interest
Interest paid

Interest received

Dividend received

Ezio Salvai /
General Ma|

Note 2011 2010

(155,850,471) (48,897,354)

30 (90,321,169)  (612,463,165)

30 (115,578,852) 961,143,707

30 14,638,190 18,504,797

17 (19,008,073) (5,927,489)

123,272 {1,090,314)

(365,997,103) 311,270,182

18 (4,753,718) (4,516,907)

18 169,067 3,301,243

19 (2,513,450) (4,585,452)

17 (376,288,973)  (152,280,551)

17 139,920,794 158,110,431

17 - (6,345,000)

7 245,991 510,178

(243,230,289) (5,806,058)

(33,849,192)  (149,544,500)
212,745,000

26 438,000,000 125,000,000

616,895,808 (24,544,500)

7,668,416 280,919,624

3,066,492 3,885,768

704,250,382 419,444,990

28 714,985,290 704,250,382

113,620,423 85,779,413

299,905,093 235,714,143

245,995 510,178

Catelip|De Simone

Chief

inancial Officer

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

{All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON?), unless ofherw:se stated)

1. BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA AND ITS OPERATIONS

Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpacle Romania SA (the "Bank"} has been incorporated in
Romania in December 1996, initially under the name of “West Bank” and is licensed by the
National Bank of Romania to conduct banking activities. The Bank has changed its name from
“West Bank” to “Sanpaolo IMI Bank Romania” after the approval by National Bank of Romania
on 16 October 2003 and finally to “Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaoclo Romania® after the
approval by the National Bank of Romania on the 14 January 2008. The Bank is principally
engaged in retail banking operations in Romania.

The Bank’s holding company and ultimate holding company is [ntesa Sanpaolo SpA.

As at 31 December 2011 the Bank had 38 branches and ‘39 representative offices (2010: 39
branches and 43 representative offices).

. The Bank’s registered office is located at the following address:

88, B-dul Revolutiei, Arad, Romania ..

In 2011 the average number of employees was 693 (2010: 766)

The Board of Directors formulates policies for the operation of the Bank and monitors their
implementation. The Board is composed of 7 members appointed by the General Meeting of

Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2011 the Board of Directors of the Bank comprised the following members:

1. Giovanni Ravasio president
2. Daniele Bordina member
3. Ezio Salvai member*
4, foan Mihail Anca member
5. Adriana Saitta member
6. Giampiero Trevisan member
7. Riccardoe Poli member

*y Members of the Management Committee
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 oo
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1. Basis of preparation

These separate financial statements (“the financial statements”} have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted for use in the
European Union under the historical cost convention except for available-for-sale investments
and derivative transactions which have been measured at fair value. The principal accounting
policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

These financial statements are presented in RON and all values are rounded to the nearest
RON, except when otherwise indicated. The functional currency of the Bank is RON.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted for use in the European Union.

The Bank is exempt from producing consolidated financial statements according to 1AS 27
paragraph 10, as the following requirements are met:

A parent (Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania) does not need to present consolidated
financial statements if and only if:

(a) the parent is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary, or is a partially-owned subsidiary of
another entity and its other owners, including those not otherwise entitled to vote, have
been informed about, and do not object to, the parent not presenting financial
statements;

(b) the parent's debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market (a domestic or
foreign stock exchange or an over-the-counter market, including local and regional
markets); ‘

(c) the parent did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a
securities commission or other regulatory organisation for the purpose of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market; and

(d) the ultimate or any intermediate parent of the parent produces financial statements
available for public use that comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The ultimate parent of the Bank, incorporated in italy, prepares financial statements in
accordance with IFRS. The subsidiary Intesa Leasing IFN is accounted for at cost and tested for
impairment.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Bank presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis
regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the statement of financial position date
(current) and more than 12 months after the statement of financial position date (non-current) is
presented in note 31. .

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liability simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in the consolidated income statement
unless required or permitted by an accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically
disclosed in the accounting policies of the Bank.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011.

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the process of applying the Bank’s recognition and measurement accounting policies,
management has used its judgments and made estimates in determining the amounts
recognized in the financial statements. The most significant use of judgments and estimates are
as follows:

(a) Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial
position date to assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement. In particular, management judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based
on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resuiting in future
changes to the allowance.

{ oans and advances that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all
individually insignificant loans and advances are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets
with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether provision should be made due to incurred
loss events for which there is no objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident. The
collective assessment takes account of data from the loan portfolio (such as levels of arrears,
credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments to the effect of concentrations of
risks and economic data (including levels of unemployment, real estate price indices, country
risk and the performance of different individual groups).

The impairment loss on the loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note 8, 16, and
34.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined by

using valuation techniques, which contain variables obtained from observable market data.
Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are

* validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area that created

them.

All models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data; however, areas such as credit
risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management to make
estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value of
financial instruments.

(c) Provision for litigations

The Bank follows the guidance of IFRS for recording the provisions for contingencies.
Provisions are recorded when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, there is a probable cash outflow from the Bank and the cash flow can be
reliably estimated. In assessing the probability of the cash outflow the Bank assesses the
conditions existing at balance sheet date and uses the judgment and advice of internal and
external lawyers which represent the Bank in legal court cases. If the conditions are no longer
met, the Bank reverses the provisions. In assessing the probable cash outflows the Bank also
involves its legal advisers and formal -documentation from the legal files. The amount of
provision is also computed with reference to the timing of expected outflow. Where the timing is

9
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPACLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 .

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

over 1 year, the Bank records the provision at their present value discounted at the Bank’s cost
of funds rate.

(d) Taxation

Romanian tax legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can occur
frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and
activity of the Bank may be challenged by the relevant regional and State authorities. Recent
events within Romania suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive position in its
interpretation of the legislation and assessments and, as a result, it is possible that transactions
and activities that have not been challenged in the past may be challenged. As such, significant
additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open fo review
by the authorities in respect of taxes for 4 calendar years preceding the year of review. Under
certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods. |

As at 31 December 2011, Management believes that- its interpretation of the relevant legislation
is appropriate and that the Bank’s tax positions will be sustained.

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect to tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

{e) Impairment of available for sale investments

The Bank reviews its debt securities classified as available-for-sale investments at each
statement of financial position date to assess whether they are impaired. This requires similar
judgement as applied to the individual assessment of loans and advances.

The Bank also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity investments when there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of
what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Bank

* evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and duration and extent to

which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
(H Impairment of equity investments

The Bank reviews its equity investments at each statement of financial position date to assess
whether they are impaired.

The Bank also records impairment charges on equity investments when there is objective
evidence.

(g) Going concern

The Bank’s management has made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

10
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwrse stated)

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3. Change in accounting policies and estimates
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
as follows:
The Bank has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations as of 1
January 2011:

% IFRS 1 First-time adoption

> IFRS 3 Business Combinations

YVVVVVVVVY

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (Amended})
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised)

IAS 32 Classification on Rights Issues (Amended)

When the adoption of the standard or interpretation is deemed to have an impact on the
financial statements or performance of the Bank, its impact is described below:

In May 2010 the IASB issued its third omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a
view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The effective dates of the
improvements are various and the earliest is for the financial year beginning 1 July 2010. Early

~ application is permitted in all cases.

IFRS 1 First-time adoption, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011. This improvement clarifies the treatment of accounting policy changes in the year of
adoption after publishing an interim financial report in accordance with IAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting, allows first-time adopters to use an event-driven fair value as deemed
cost and expands the scope of ‘deemed cost’ for property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets to include items used subject to rate regulated activities. ,

IFRS 3 Business Combinations, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010. This improvement clarifies that the amendments to [FRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures, IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, that eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration,
do not apply to contingent consideration that arose from business combinations whose
acquisition dates precede the application of IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).Moreover, this
improvement limits the scope of the measurement choices (fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets) only fo
the components of non-controlling interest that are present ownership interests that entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets. Finally, it requires an entity
(in a business combination) to account for the replacement of the acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions (whether obliged or voluntarily), i.e., split between consideration and
post comblnatlon expenses.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, effective for annual periods begmnlng on or
after 1 January 2011.This improvement gives clarifications of disclosures required by IFRS 7
and emphasises the interaction betwsen quantitative and qualitative disclosures and the
nature and extent of risks associated with financial instruments.

(
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011. This amendment clarifies that an entity will present an analysis of
other comprehensive income for each component of equity, either in the statement of
changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010. This improvement clarifies that the consequential
amendments from 1AS 27 made to IAS 21. The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates, IAS 28 Investments in Associates and IAS 31 Interests in Joint Veniures apply
prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier when [AS 27 is
applied earlier.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011. This improvement provides guidance to illustrate how to apply disclosure
principles in IAS 34 and add disclosure requirements. -y

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011.This improvement clarifies that when the fair value of award credits is
measured based on the value of the awards for which they could be redeemed, the amount
of discounts or incentives otherwise granted to customers not participating in the award
credit scheme, is to be taken into account. The Bank does not expect that the amendment
will have any impact on its financial position or performance, as no such transactions have
taken place.

[FRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (Amended)

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The
purpose of this amendment was to permit entities to recognise as an asset some voluntary
prepayments for minimum funding contributions. This Earlier application permitted and must
be applied retrospectively. The Bank does not expect that the amendment will have any
impact on its financial position or performance, as no such transactions have taken place.

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010. This
interpretation addresses the accounting treatment when there is a renegotiation between the
entity and the creditor regarding the terms of a financial liability and the creditor agrees to
accept the entity’s equity instruments to settle the financial liability fully or partially. IFRIC 19
clarifies such equity instruments are “consideration paid” in accordance with paragraph 41 of
1AS 39. As a result, the financial liability is derecognised and the equity instruments issued
are treated as consideration paid to extinguish that financial liability. The Bank does not
expect that the amendment will have any impact on its financial position or performance, as
no such transactions have taken place.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised)

The revision is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.This
revision relates to the judgment which is required so as to assess whether a government
and entities known to the reporting entity to be under the control of that government are
considered a single customer. In assessing this, the reporting entity shall consider the extent
of economic integration between those entities. Early application is permitted and adoption
shall be applied retrospectively. :

12
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Alt amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

+ |AS 32 Classification on Rights Issues {Amended)
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010. This
amendment relates to the rights issues offered for a fixed amount of foreign currency which
were treated as derivative liabilities by the existing standard. The amendment states that if
- certain criteria are met, these should be classified as equity regardless of the currency in
which the exercise price is denominated. The amendment is to be applied retrospectively.

2.4. Future changes in accounting policies

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial reporting Standards (Amendment) —
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters — effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The IASB has provided guidance on how an
entity should resume presenting IFRS financial statements when its functional currency ceases

. to be subject to severe hyperinflation. When.an entity’s date of transition to IFRS is on, or after,

the date its functional currency ceases o be subject to severe hyperinflation (the functional
currency normalization date), the entity may elect to measure all assets and liabilities held
before the functional currency normalisation date, and that were subject to severe
hyperinflation, at fair value on the date of transition to IFRS. This fair value may be used as the
deemed cost of those assets and liabilities in the opening IFRS statement of financial position.
The amendment also removes the legacy fixed dates in IFRS 1 relating to derecognition and
day one gain or loss transactions. The amended standard has these dates coinciding with the
date of transition to IFRS.

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financial
position or performance of the Bank.

IFRS 7 Financial Instrumerits: Disclosures (Amendment) — effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The amendment requires additional quantitative and
qualitative disclosures relating to transfers of financial assets, when:
» Financial assets are derecognized in their entirety, but the entity has a continuing
involvement in them (e.g. options or guarantees on the transferred assets)
» Financial assets are not derecognized in their entirety

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financial
position or performance of the Bank.

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) — Deferred Taxes: Recovery of Underlying Assets —
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The amendment to 1AS 12
introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment properties measured at fair
value will be recognized on a sale basis, unless an entity has a business model that would
indicate the investment property will be consumed in the business. If consumed, an own use
hasis must be adopted. The amendment also introduces the requirement that deferred tax on
non-depreciable assets measured using the revaluation model in IAS 16 should always be
measured on a sale basis. As a result of this amendment, SIC 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of
Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets has been withdrawn.

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financial
position or-performance of the Bank. '
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA .

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherw:se stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement — effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. However, the IASB issued Exposure Draft (ED)
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 (ED/2011/3) that proposes the following:
> To move the mandatory effective date for IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2015 with early application continuing to be permitted
> Not to provide further relief from restatement of comparative amounts to periods
beginning after 2012
The comment period for the ED closes on 30 November 2011 and amendments, if any, are
expected to be issued by the end of 2011.

The first phase of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification and measurement
of financial instruments (Phase 1). The Board's work on the other phases is ongoing and
includes impairment of financial instruments and hedge accounting, with a view to replacing IAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in its entirety. Phase 1 of IFRS 9
applies to all financial instruments within the scope of IAS.39.

Financial assets
All financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition.
Debt instruments may, if the Fair Value Option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured
at amortized cost if:
> The asset is held within a business model that has the objective to hold the asset
to collect the contractual cash flows :
And
» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding
All other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value.
All equity investment financial assets are measured at fair value either through other
comprehensive income (OCH) or profit or loss. Equity instruments held for trading must be
measured at fair value through profit or loss. However, entities have an irrevocable choice by
instrument for all other equity financial assets.

Financial liabilities
For FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to

‘changes in credit risk must be presented in the OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value

is presented in profit or oss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability's credit risk in the OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismaich in profit or loss.
All other IAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been
carried forward into IFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria
for using the FVO.

. The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financial

position or performance of the Bank.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements -
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. IFRS 10 replaces the portion
of IAS 27 that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also addresses
the issues raised in SIC 12 — Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities resulting in SIC-12 being
withdrawn. IAS 27, as revised, is limited to the accounting for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures, and associates in separate financial statements.

14



T
—.J

BN S (VRS N

S

NV SN

-

) (-.;- -
e TR

£

miminy

{7

— E— e
- U |

-

__..__.«.‘

...,,__ﬁ.,
-

—

—

—

.

S |

etk

i

__._.,
et

C

",ﬁ.,

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IFRS 10 does not change consolidation procedures (i.e. how to consolidate an entity). Rather,
IFRS 10 changes whether an entity is consolidated by revising the definition of control. Control
exists when an investors has:

» Power over the investee (defined in IFRS 10 as when the investor has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities)

> Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
And

» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investee's refurns ,

IFRS 10 also provides a number of clarifications on applying this new definition of control,
including the following key points: '

> An investor is any party that potentially controls an investee; such party need not
hold an equity investment to be considered an investor;

» An investor may have control over an investee even when it has less than a
majority of the voting rights of that investee (sometimes referred to as de facto
control)

» Exposure to risks and rewards is an indicator of control, but does not in itself
constitute control

» When decision-making rights have been delegated or are being held for the
benefit of others, it is necessary to assess whether a decision-maker is a
principal or an agent to determine whether it has control

» Consolidation is required until such time as control ceases, even if control is
temporary

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financial
position or performance of the Bank.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, |IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures —
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly-controlfed Entities — Non-monetary Contributions
by Venturers. Joint control under IFRS 11 is defined as the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when the decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The reference to ‘control’ in ‘joint
control’ refers to the definition of ‘control’ in IFRS 10.

IFRS 11 also changes the accounting for joint arrangements by moving from three categories
under IAS 31 to the following two categories:

Joint operation — an arrangement in which the parties with joint control have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities relating to that arrangement. Joint operations are accounted for
by showing the party's interest in the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and\or its
relative share of jointly controlled assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, if any.

Joint venture — an arrangement in which the parties with joint control have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity accounting
method. The option to account for joint ventures (as newly defined) using proportlonate
consolidation has been removed.

Under this new classification, the structure of the joint arrangement is not the only factor
considered when classifying the joint arrangement as either a joint operation or a joint venture,
which is a change from IAS 31. Under IFRS 11, parties are required to consider whether a
separate vehicle exists and, if so, the legal form of the separate vehicle, the contractual terms

15
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

and conditions, and other facts and circumstances. In addition, |1AS 28 was amended fo include
the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures.

The Bank does not expect that the amendments will have any impact on its financial position or
performance, as no such transactions have taken place.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities — effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. IFRS 12 applies to an entity that has interest in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and\or structured entities. Many of the disclosure requirements of
IFRS 12 were previously included in IAS 27, IAS 31 and IAS 28, while others are new.

The objective of the new disclosure reqwrements is to help the users of financial statements
understand the following:
» The effects of an entity’s interests in other entities on its financial position,
financial performance and cash flows
» The nature of, and the risks associated with, the entity’s interest in other entities
Some of the more extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosures of IFRS 12 include:
» Summarized financial information for each subsidiary with a material non-
controlling interest
» Significant judgments used by management in determining control, joint control
and significant influence, and the type of joint arrangement (i.e. joint operation or
joint venture), if applicable
» Summarized financial information for each individually material joint venture and
associate
» Nature of the risks associated with an entity’s interest in unconsolidated
structured entities, and changes to those risks

The Bank does not expect that the amendments will have any impact on its financial position or
performance, as no such transactions have taken place.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement — effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013. IFRS 13 does not affect when fair value is used, but rather describes how to
measure fair value where fair value is reqUIred or permitted by IFRS.

Fair value under IFRS 13 is defined as ‘the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date' (i.e. an ‘exit price'). ‘Fair value’ as used in IFRS 2 Share-based Payments and IAS 17
l.eases is excluded from the scope of IFRS 13.
The standard provides clarification on a number of areas, including the following:
» Concepts of ‘highest and best use’ and ‘valuation premise’ are relevant only for
non-financial assefs and liabilities
> Market participants are assumed to transact in a way that maximizes value in
situations where the unit of account for the item being measured is not clear from
other IFRS
> The impact of blockage discounts is prohibited in all fair value measurements
» A description of how to measure fair value when a market becomes less active
New disclosures related to fair value measurements are also required to help users understand
the valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurements and the effect of
fair value measurements on profit or loss.

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financial
position or performance of the Bank.

16
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 .

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive income — Amendments to IAS 1 —
effective for annual pericds beginning on or affer 1 July 2012. The amendments to IAS 1
change the grouping of items presented in the OCI. ltems that would be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or
settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified.

The amendments do not change the nature of the items that are currently recognized in OCl,
nor do they impact the determination of whether items in the OCI are reclassified through profit
or loss in future periods.

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financial
position or performance of the Bank. -

IAS .19 Employee Benefits (Revised) — effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 . .

January 2013. The revised standard includes a number of amendments that range from
fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-wording. The more significant changes
include the following:

> For defined benefit plans, the ability to defer recognition of actuarial gains and
losses (i.e. the corridor approach) has been removed. As revised, actuarial gains
and losses are recognized in OCl when they occur. Amounts recorded in profit or
loss are limited to current and past service costs, gains or losses on settfements,
and net interest income (expense) All other changes in the net defined benefit
asset (liability) are recognized in OCI with no subsequent recycling to profit or
loss.

> Objectives for disclosures of defined benefit plans are explicity stated in the
revised standard, along with new or revised disclosure requirements. These new
disclosure requirements include quantitative information of the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to a reasonably possible change in each significant
actuarial assumption.

» Termination benefits will be recognized at the earlier of when the offer or
termination cannot be withdrawn, or when the related restructuring costs are
recognized under IAS 37 Liabilities.

> The distinction between short-term and other long-term employee benefits will be
based on the expected timing of settlement rather than the employee’s
entitlement to the benefits.

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the new amendments on the financia['
position or performance of the Bank.

2.5. Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been restated to conform to changes in
presentation in the current year.

During year 2011 the depreciation and amortisation expense for the increase in book values of
fixed assets as a result of hyperinflation treatment (IAS 29) has been calculated and booked.
The change in the book values of fixed assets has been made until and including year 2003 and
the related depreciation and amortisation expense has previously not been calculated. For this
reason the calculation for the depreciation and amortisation expense for the period 2005-2008

17
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherw:se stated}

has been remade and the value of accumulated deficit as of 1 January 2010 has been changed,
while the calculation for the year 2009 has impacted accumulated deficit as of 1 January 2010.

The book values of the fixed asseis have also been changed as a result of the changes in
depreciation and amortisation expenses, and the corresponding details can be found in Notes

18-19.

The impact of the restatement is following:

At 1 January 2010

Other
Computer intangible Land and Computer Other
software assets Buildings Hardware assets
Cost 24,451,077 61,825 101,667,703 9,009,453 37,862,842
Accumulated depreciation 12,658,364 53,210 16,155,900 8,187,408 16,416,303
Net bock value 11,792,713 8,615 85,511,803 912,045 21,446,539
As at 1 January 2010 Restated
Other
Computer intangible Land and Computer Other
software assets buildings Hardware assets
Cost 24,046,874 109,190 101,169,742 9,579,195 35,931,466
Accumulated depreciation 12,137,361 102,257 12,428,205 7,154,818 13,562,259
Net book value 11,909,513 6,915 88,741,537 2,424,377 22,369,207
At 31 December 2010
Other
Computer intangible Land and Computer Other
software assets Buildings Hardware assets
Cost 27,918,619 55,044 112,381,136 9,186,965 29,945,927
Accumulated depreciation 16,598,906 52,876 21,189,463 9,085,349 15,968,854
Net book value 11,319,713 2,168 91,191,673 101,616 13,977,073
At 31 December 2010 Restated
Other
Computer intangible Land and Computer Other
software assets Buildings assets
Hardware
Cost 27,527,470 83,512 111,789,460 9,374,032 26,867,507
Accumulated depreciation  1¢,090,957 83,044 17,620,923 7,734,897 12,929,980
Net book value 11,436,513 468 04250537 1,639,135 13,937,527

18
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 -
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
2.6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Functional currency of the Bank is the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates. The financial statements are presented in RON which is the Bank’s functional and
presentation currency. The functional currency of the subsidiary is RON.

(b) Transaction and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are initially translated into the functional currency
at the official exchange rate ruling at the fransaction date. Exchange differences resulting from
the settlement of transactions .denominated in foreign currency are included in the income
statement at the time of settlement using the exchange rate ruling on that date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated in RON as at the
statement of financial position date. At 31 December 2011 the exchange rate used for
translating foreign currency balances was USD 1 = 3,3393 (2010:USD 1 = RON 3.2355) and
EUR 1 = 4,3197 (2010: EUR 1 = RON 4.2848). Foreign currency gains and losses arising from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are reflected in the income statement for the
year.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analyzed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized in income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available for sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

Financial assets
(@) Classification

The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets held at fair
value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-
for-sale financial assets. Management determines the classification of the Bank’s investments at
initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading and those designated at
fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by
management. The Bank currently does not have any financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.

19



C

ey
S—

£

o

_.....

R S IS R

r"‘"’“?

2

7

=

o ey

U B

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market, other than: (a) those that the entity intends fo sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for trading, and those that the
entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that the
entity upon initial recognition designates as available for sale; or (c) those for which the holder
may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration.

(i) Held-to-maturity (“HTM")

..HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments.and

fixed maturities that the Bank’s management has the positive intention and ability fo hold to
maturity. Were the Bank sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM assets, the enfire
category would be tainted and reclassified as available for sale. During 2010 and 2009 the Bank
did not held any HTM securities in its portfolio.

(iv) Available-for-sale (“AFS”)

AFS investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity
prices.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and initial measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets FVTPL, HTM and AFS are recognized on trade-date -
the date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset. Loans are recognized when
cash is advanced to the borrowers. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit and [oss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transactions costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

{c) Subsequent measurement

AFS financial assets and financial assets FVTPL are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and HTM investments are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the FVTPL category are
included in the income statement in the period in which they arise. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of AFS financial assets are recognized directly in equity, until the
financial asset is derecognized or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity should be recognized in profit or loss. However, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognized in the income statement. Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognized in the income statement when the entity’s right to receive payment

~ is established.
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- NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

I for the year ended 31 December 2011
e (All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)
[l

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

™M
'L[ (d) Fair value measurement principles

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices for the
treasury bills denominated in RON and for the Eurobonds. If the market for a financial asset is
not active (and for unlisted securities), the Bank establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques, The Bank obtains firm gquotations at the valuation date for the Thill in EUR from 3-4
banks (via Reuters dealing system) and then use an average price from the firm quotations
- obtained.

_._._.., .__,

S

These include recent prices at which recent arm’s léngth transactions have taken place.

-

(e) Reclassification of financial assets

...__.ﬁﬂ

-

Reclassification is at the choice of management, and is determined on an instrument by
instrument basis. The Bank does not reclassify any financial instrument after initial recognition

{0

M. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

_mi

[

[

Iv. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value with changes reflected in the
income statement. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets,
including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
models. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when
fair value is negative.

N
i

{

=

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument
is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument (i.e., without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Bank
recognizes profits on day 1.

1

2

TS

—

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as the conversion option in a
convertible bond, are treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the income statement. No embedded derivatives exist at

reporting date.

2

(-

oy

The method of recognizing the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
. The Bank did not designate any derivative transaction as a hedging instrument during the years
F 2011 and 2010 and did not use hedge accounting. The fair value gain or loss has been
- recognized by the Bank through profit or loss.

.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in the statement of income for all instruments
measured at amortized cost and debt instruments classified as available for sale using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income includes coupons earned on fixed income
investment securities and accrued discount and premium on treasury securities.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effectlve interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided. Loan origination fees for loans which are probable of being drawn down, are deferred
and recognized as adjustments to the effective yield on the loan.

Fee and commission income consists mainly of fees and commissions received for the
payments and receipts transacted through customer accounts, current account administration,
trading of securities and foreign exchange.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity in the
period in which they are approved by the Annual General Meeting of shareholders. The
statutory financial statements of the Bank prepared in accordance with Romanian Accountmg
Regulations are the basis for profit distribution and other appropriations.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortized cost

The Bank assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

:

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The criteria that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment
loss include:

- delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

- cash flow and financial difficulties experienced by the borrower;
- breach of loan covenants or conditions;

- initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

- deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and

- detericration in the value of collateral.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or nof, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may resuit from foreclosure less costs for obtaining
and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the
basis of similar credit risk characteristics (e.g. on the basis of counterparty type, industry and
rating). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due accordlng to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment
are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the Bank and historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Bank. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data fo reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be
directionally consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period (for
example, changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other factors
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the Bank and their magnitude). The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by
the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment.
Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the
income statement.

() Assets classified as available for sale

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

If any impairment evidence exists for available-for- sale financial assets, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed from
equity and recognized in the income statement. Impairment losses recognized in the income
statement on bond instruments are not reversed through the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software licenses computer software development costs
whose useful lives are finite. Computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized on
the basis of the expected useful lives (three to five years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized
as an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable
and unigue software products controlled by the Bank, and that will probably generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets. Direct costs
include software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant

- overheads.

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized using the straight-
line method over their useful lives which is typically three years.

Property and equipment
Cost

Property and equipment are stated at cost, restated to the equivalent purchasing power of the
Romanian Leu at 31 December 2003 for assefs acquired prior to 1 January 2004, less
accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where required. Cost includes
borrowing costs incurred on specific or general funds borrowed fo finance construction of
qualifying assets.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 s

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”}, unfess otherwise stated)

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Cost of replacing major parts or
components of property and equipment items are capitalized and the replaced part is retired.

Gains and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are
recognized in profit or loss.

Depreciation
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of property and equipment is calculated
using the straighi-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives.

Useful lives in years

Buildings L 10-50
Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 3-15
Other assets 5

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Bank would currently obtain

" from disposal of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the

age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. The residual value of an asset is
nil if the Bank expects to use the asset until the end of its physical life. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date. :

Operating Lease

The leases entered into by the Bank are primarily operating leases. The total payments made
under operating leases are charged to other operating expenses in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in
which termination takes place.

Xl Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with
less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition: cash; non-restricted balances with
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 .
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

central banks, including minimum mandatory reserves; treasury hills and other eligible bills;
loans and advances to banks and short-term government securities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Financial guarantees contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are
given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given being the relative fee income. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Bank's liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial measurement,
less amortization calculated to recognize in the income statement the fee income earned on a
straight line basis over the life of the guarantee and the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle any financial obligation arising at the balance sheet date. These estimates are
determined based on experience of similar transactions and history of past Iosses
supplemented by the judgment of Management.

Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is taken to the income statement under
impairment charge for loan losses.

Other credit related commitments

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into other credit related commitments
including loan commitments and letters of credit.

Loan commitments and letters of credit are irrevocable commitments which can generate new
risks. They are continually evaluated in order to determine if an outflow (incorporating future
economic benefits) has become probable. If such an outflow has become probable, a provision
will be booked in the financial statements for the period in which this has occurred.

Specific provisions are raised against other credit related commitments when the Bank has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, when it is probable that there will be an outflow of
resources and when the outflow can be reliably measured.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. for the year ended 31 December 2011

{All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

XVIL.

XVIIL

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Pension obligations and other post retirement benefits

The Bank, in the normal course of business makes payments to the Romanian State funds on
behalf of its Romanian employees for pension, health care and unemployment benefit.
Substantially all employees of the Bank are members of the State pension plan which is a
defined contribution plan.

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined using an actuarial valuation. Due to
the long~term nature of this plan, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The Bank does not operate any other pension scheme and, consequently, has no obligation in
respect of pensions. _

Income taxes
{a) Current income tax

The Bank records profit tax upon net income from the financial statements in accordance with
Romanian Accounting Regulations and profit tax legislation. Romanian profits tax legislation is
based on a fiscal year ending on 31 December. In recording both the current and deferred
income tax charge for the year ended, the Bank has computed the annual income tax charge
based on Romanian profits tax legislation enacted (or substantially enacted) at the balance
sheet date.

(b) Deferred income tax

Differences between financial reporting under International Financial Reporting Standards and
Romanian fiscal regulations give rise to material differences between the carrying value of
certain assets and liabilities and income and expenses for financial reporting and income tax
purposes. '

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences c¢an be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by

- the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of property and equipment,
revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities including derivative contracts, provisions for
post-retirement benefits and tax losses carried forward. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit nor loss.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale investments, which are
charged or credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and
subsequently recognized in the income statement together with the realized gain or loss.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), uniess otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognized in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is capitalized for qualifying assets.

Net trading income

Net trading income includes the entire profit or loss impact (gains and losses) for trading assets
and liabilities including derivatives held for trading.

Equﬁy reserves

The separate financial statements of the Bank include the following reserves:
- AFSreserve
- lLegal reserve
- Other capital reserve

The AFS reserve reflects all the changes arising from the evaluation at fair value of these
assets.

Since the evaluation at fair of AFS assets pertains to transactions that directly affect equity
without influencing profit and loss, deferred tax assets and liabilities that arise on capital losses
and gains that may not be deducted during the year are recognized through the AFS reserve.

In accordance with the Romanian law on banks and banking activities, the Bank must distribute
the profit as dividends or perform a transfer to retained earnings (reserves) on the basis of the
financial statements prepared under Romanian Accounting Regulations {"RAR”). Amounts
transferred to reserves must be used for the purposes designated when the transfer is made.

Under the Romanian banking legislation, the Bank is required to create legal reserves,
appropriated at the rate of 5% of profit up to a limit of 20% of the share capital.

The reserve for general banking risks is retained from the statutory gross profit and is calculated
applying 1% to balance of assets carrying banking risks. The reserve was established starting
with the financial year 2004 until the end of 2006. '
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for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherw:se stated)

3, INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

2011 2010
Loans and advances to customers 220,808,937 188,023,042
Interest income accrued on impaired loans 14,449,044 22,244,722
Current accounts and deposits with banks 10,343,635 10,018,096
Financial investments — available-for-sale 21,597,488 8,577,606
267,199,004 229,764,366
4. INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSE
2011 2010
Due to customers 70,575,328 50,042,924
Due to banks 21,197,703 13,316,685
Other borrowed funds 35,811,663 21,920,000
Repo transaction 195,461 286,244
127,780,155 85,565,853
5. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2011 2010
Fee and commission income
Transactions related fee and commission income 18,504,323 16,983,822
Credit related fee and commission income 5,665,284 6,166,466
Other fees 20,727 14,405
24,190,334 23,164,693
Fee and commission expense
Transactions with banks 4,086,047 4,392,902
Fee for cash purchase 307,101 361,096
Other fees paid 3,523,275 282,101
7,916,423 5,036,099
6. NET TRADING INCOME
2011 2010
Foreign exchange '
- Gain\(Loss) from frading 728,297 660,095
- Gain\{Loss) from dealing transaction 14,459,662 16,879,287
Interest rate swaps - (162,414)
15,187,959 17,376,968
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December. 2011

{All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2011 2010

Dividend income 245,995 515,272
Release of provision for litigation 700,000 -
Income from sale of tangible assets 160,800 3,302,356
Release of provision closure branch 2,517,410 2,661,715
Recovery of collection expenses 209,822 119,648
Rent income 535,916 240,892
Release of provision overdue commissions 830,011 -
Other income 251,949 152,254

5,541,903 6,892,137

The income from the sale of tangible assets has been obtained from the sale-and-lease-back
transaction with the Bank’s auto fleet and as a result of the sale of the former Lipova.branch

building.

8. CREDIT LOSS EXPENSE

2011 2010
Corporate lending 1,773,271 1,677,925
Small/medium business lending 177,461,636 72,273,737
Consumer lending 10,436,999 2,176,239
Residential mortgages 6,130,628 1,027,730

195,802,534 77,155,631

9. NET INCOME FROM OTHER FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS

2011 2010
Guarantees issued (733,647) (633,966)
Unused irrevocable credit limit 480,354 (1,135,200}
Net income / (loss) from other financial fransactions {253,293) (1,769,166)
10. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2011 2010
Wages and salaries 48,883,856 49,521,506
Social security costs 12,299,754 13,380,596
Other expenses 1,536,603 1,307,692

62,720,213 64,209,794

Other personnel expenses include meal vouchers.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON"), unless otherwise stated)

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2011 2010
Administrative expenses 35,698,023 45,156,491
Loss on sale of property and equipment 2,857,166 5,067,265
Expenses on local taxes 2,155,451 2,857,187
Software expenses 4,216,067 3,690,472
Advertising and marketing 1,169,176 3,937,746
Guarantee fund expenses 3,726,108 2,089,830
Professional services expenses 1,479,726 992,328
Provision for litigation 400,000 1,200,000
Branch closure cost provisions - 8,424,082
Tax provisions - 1,200,000
Overdue commissions provision 1,631,356 -
Other 1,606,607 936,601

54,939,670 76,452,002

Following a detailed analysis of the operational results and the degree of meeting the
operational performance targets, 20 units (out of which 4 during year 2011) that have not
managed to meet the performance targets and\or have realized losses have been closed, after
approval from the Bank’s Board of Directors.

The Bank has booked provisions covering the total costs of closing down these units. As the
expenses have been subsequently incurred, the provisions have been reversed accordingly.
The related expenses with the closing of these branches include: penalties paid to landlords for
the unilateral closing of leasehold agreements, non-recoverable leasehold improvements write-

downs.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses are detailed below:

2011 2010
Rental expenses 19,257,584 26,266,704
Consumables 396,277 273,648
Light, heating and other 2,317,899 . 2,367,896
IT Communications 1,612,299 1,737,725
Postal, telephone and other 2,094,647 2,332,713
Travel cosis 1,419,401 1,685,098
Security 1,451,454 1,671,739
Personnel training 138,564 456,524
Insurance expenses 360,163 747,085
Cleaning 1,058,523 1,128,859
Services for card 902,636 713,161
Protocol 449 866 532,387
Legal expenses 424,554 259,605
Forms, stationery and printed matters 1,105,856 1,262,921
Transportation 809,193 829,032
Gther 1,901,107 2,891,414

35,698,023 45,156,491

31



(U SRS SN S DR NN SUND R SN T ST SO SN S SR R SRR ST SRS R B D

=

(=
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwrse stated)

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense consists of current and deferred income tax as follows:

2011 2010 2010
As Restated
previously
issued

Current tax expense / (revenue) - 32,250 32,250
Deferred tax charge / (release) (14,827,605) (5,692,627) (6,030,759)
Income tax expense / (revenue) (14,827,605) (5,660,377) {5,998,509)
Profit/ (Loss) bhefore tax (155,850,473) (48,897,354) {48,996,251)
Theoretical tax charge at the applicable statutory rate (24,936,076) (7,823,577) (7,839,400)
Tax effect on items which are not deductible:

Non-deductible expenses 31,794,545 17,836,339 17,836,339
Income which is exempt from taxation (22,645,678) (8,764,509) (8,764,509)
Income tax expense / (revenue) (14,827,605} " (5,660,377) {5,998,509)

The diffefences between regulations issued by the Romanian Ministry of Finance and the
accounting rules applied in preparing these financial statements give rise to temporary
differences between the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities for financial reporting and

tax purposes.

32



SN B

1>

‘yoeoidde

aAIleAISSUOD B yym patedaud usaq sey uejd 19Bpng sy | “1L0Z J9qwada(] LE Je se yueg ay) Aeq peplooal Ssoj [29s!) [210) oL _ﬁm..mvm.o LS NOY Jo Ino

#£2°902 50F NOH AJuo JoA0Dal 0] paleLlnsa sl ysiym Ul 1.0z — Z10Z 126png syl 01 Buiploooe yueq ayl AQ possasse S| 1oSSe Xe) polialap Jo AJIeisA008)

652'0€0% 129'269's G09°L28'vL (G62°6F1°E) ‘ {awoou)jesuadxe
212¢88°Z 88y LL pue {(A31j1qe)))/ Josse Xe) passseq
09£'026°L 00€'025'L (12e'598) - 09£°0256°L 6£0'50. seouasalip Alelodws) s|guonpaq
G12'29€°2¢ G1.'29¢8'ZE 950'6.5°0¢ 9zZ's6t' L1 LP6 L6]'EY 166'2Ev VL $§0| 10} }ipa.o (e0s!4
ov9'9 - (ov9'9) - 0v9'9 - jsaseu S4Y
509'06 509'96 (s09°'08) - $09'96 - SUCISSILULUOD 8NPIBAQ
(LrL'6€) (1vL'6g) - - (18£°9¢) (s28'c) SJUSWISaAUI SHY JO SNnfeA Jied
(662°'08¢) (L8£'LLL) £eg'Lob (ve5°12) {ccg'Lov) - S}assE paxi) Jo JUaWsie)sal 67 SV
(L21L'985°22) (Lz1'986'L2) (g1L2'081'61) (g8¥'cco'yL) (609°'6022H) (22g'068°29) $18LOJSND 0] S0UBApE
. pue sueo| 1o) adUemo|e E&E._MNQE_
saqUISHIP
’ Alelodwia) ajqiionpay Jo s10940 Xel
paje)say panss| LL0Z paje}say pajesay LL0Z
A|snojaaid sy 010z Arenuep 0L0Z
0102 010z L je sy

Jualud)e)s aloou]

uojysod [eioueuly Jo JUsWIBIRIS

:swa) Buimojjo) sy} 0} ajgernquiie aue saljljigel) pue s}esse Xg) awodul pallajeq
‘(%91 :0102) %9} Jo ojes xe) yjoid e Buisn poyeLl Ajjigel| sy} Jepun

saousalayip Alejodwal |[B uo palenojed ale saxe} swodul paLaed (%91 :0L0Z) %91 Jo siel e Bulfjdde paje|nojeo s| xe) swooul Jua.lng

pp— PP W
[E— Fow——

1 3

T

S

{paieys asimialjo ssajun (\NOY,,) 197 uBlueLIOY LI passaldxa sle syunociue Jiy)
LLOZ Jeqwadsa( £ papud l1eah ay) 10y}

SINIFNILVIS TVIONVNId TJLVHVd3IS 3HL OL S310N

— <mm,_,_w_<sbm.“o._oﬁz<m.<mm_.t,_\__mm__<5mmﬂ,_o&m__uzé

3 LI T

[

N




T S R AN

0

£

S e

1.

L

{

.

[

{7

(0

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanifan Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

13. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

As at 1
January
2011 2010 2010
Cash on hand 60,067,270 . 57,056,423 58,874,122
Current account with the Central Bank 498,152,680 452,460,014 341,848,157
558,219,950 509,516,437 400,722,279

Current accounts include the mandatory reserves with the National Bank of Romania. During
2010, the interest ranged from 1.86% to 1.29% (2010: from 3.38% to 1.57%) for reserves held
in RON and was between 0.88% and 0.69% (2010: from 1.27% to 0.96%) for reserves held in
EUR. The interest rates for term deposits with the National Bank of Romania ranged during

2010 from 2.25% to 6.25% (2010: 2.25% to 6.25%).

14. DUE FROM BANKS

As at1
January
2011 2010 2010
Current accounts 13,729,901 13,647,639 6,719,545
Overnight deposits and term deposits 143,035,439 181,086,306 12,003,166
Total due from banks 156,765,340 194,733,945 18,722,711

In 2011, interest on placementis with banks ranged from 1.50% to 7,50% for RON (2010: from
1.59% to 7.56%), from 0.40% to 1.95% for EUR (2010: from 0.05% to 0.44%), from 0.10% to
0.60% for USD (in 2010 there were no placements with banks in USD during the year).
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounis are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

15.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives often involve at their inception only a mutual exchange of promises with little or no
transfer of consideration. However, these instruments frequently involve a high degree of
leverage and are very volatile. A relatively small movement in the value of the asset, rate or
index underlying a derivative contract may have a significant impact on the profit and loss of the
Bank.

Over-the-counter derivatives may expose the Bank to the risks associated with the absence of
an exchange market on which to close out an open position.

The Bank’s exposure under derivative contracts is closely monitored as part of the overall
management of the Bank’'s market risk.

Forward contracts

Forward contracts are contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial instrument at a
specific price and date in the future. Forwards are customized contracts transacted in the over-
the-counter market. The Bank has credit exposure to the counterparties of the forward
contracts. Forward contracts are settled gross. Forward contracts result in market risk exposure.

Swaps

Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange streams of payments over
time based on specified notional amounts, in relation to movements in a specified underiying
index such as an interest rate, foreign currency rate or equity index.

Interest rate swaps relate to contracts taken out by the Bank with other financial institutions in
which the Bank either receives or pays a floating rate of interest in return for paying or receiving,
respectively, a fixed rate of interest. The payment flows are usually netted against each other,
with the differences being paid by one party to the other. The Bank has undertaken an interest
rate swap with the parent company.

In a currency swap, the Bank pays a specified amount in one currency and receives a specified
amount in another currency. Currency swaps are mostly gross-settled.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison
with instruments recognized on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts
of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Bank's exposure to credit or price risks. The derivaiive instruments become
favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or
foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments are favorable or
unfavorable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can
fluctuate significantly from fime fo time.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

{All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON’

"), unless otherwise stated)

15.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of derivative instruments heid are set out below.

At 31 December 2011 ]
Derivatives held for trading

Currency swaps
Foreign exchange derivatives

Total recognized derivative

At 31 December 2010
Derivatives held for trading

Currency swaps
Foreign exchange derivatives

Total recognized derivative

Contract/notional Fair values
amount Assets Liabilities

183,201,010 119,729 28,724
125,693,492 76,089 19,414
308,894,502 195,818 43,138
55,518,225 1,889 134,220
169,154,275 8,734 10,135
214,672,500 10,623 144,355

All derivative financial instruments are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei {“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

16. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(a) Analysis by type of customer

Corporate lending
Small/medium business lending
Consumer lending

Residential morigages
Subordinated loan

TOTAL gross exposure

Less: allowance for impairment [osses

TOTAL

The subordinated loan has been granted to Intesa Sanpaolo Leasing.

{b) Analysis by sector

Trade
Industry
Individuals
Services
Constructions
Agriculture
Other

Less provision for impairment losses

Total loans

2011 2010
270,474,800 184,750,125
2,470,803,128  2,404,130,722
366,355,005 300,340,637
289,902,059 222,249,975
4,307,825 4,284,800

3,401,842,817

(359,716,253)

3,115,756,259

(159,433,598)

3,042,126,564

2,956,322,661

% %

2011 of total 2010 of total
630,708,676 19 654,737,620 21
708,213,782 21 649,381,421 21
666,257,063 19 521,645,739 16
749,884,866 21 614,348,232 20
364,358,847 11 469,728,668 15
272,637,459 8 187,172,046 6
19,882,024 1 18,842,633 1
3,401,842,817 100 3,115,756,259 100

(359,716,253)

3,042,126,564

(159,433,598)

2,956,322,661
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

16. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

{c)  Allowance for loan losses

At 1 January 2011
Charge for the year
Releases during the
period

Written off

Effect of exchange rate
changes on provisions
At 31 December 2011

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

TOTAL

At 1 January 2010
Charge for the year
Releases during the
period ‘
Written off

Effect of exchange rate
changes on provisions
At 31 December 2010

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

TOTAL

Small/medium

Corporate business Consumer Residential
lending lending Lending Mortgages TOTAL

8,453,131 145,545,440 3,849,497 1,585,530 159,433,598
3,713,588 368,895,286 21,857,185 12,838,775 407,304,834
(1,940,317}  (192,744,538) (11,420,186) (6,708,147) (212,813,188)
- 1,310,888 - - 1,310,888
38,180 4,078,653 229,640 132,648 4,480,121
10,264,532 327,086,729 14,516,136 7,848,806 359,716,253
8,985,491 286,327,756 12,707,250 6,870,748 314,891,245
1,279,091 40,758,973 1,808,886 978,058 44.825,008
10,264,582 327,086,729 14,516,136 7,848,806 359,716,253

Small/medium :

Corporate business Consumer Residential

lending lending Lending  Mortgages TOTAL

6,668,153 68,357,364 1,631,378 492,832 77,049,727
6,169,152 263,624,824 8,001,278 3,778,608 281,573,862
(4,491,227)  (191,922,461) (5,825,040) (2,750,878) (204,989,606)
- 571,376 - - 571,376
107,053 4,914,337 141,881 64,968 5.228,239
8,453,131 145,545,440 3,849,497 1,585,530 159,433,598
7,408,816 127,564,499 3,373,923 1,389,650 139,736,888
1,044,315 17,980,941 475,574 195,880 19,696,710
8,453,131 145,545,440 3,849,497 1,585,530 159,433,598
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| NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherw:se stated)

17. . FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

(S

1 (a) Available-for-sale investments
| }
P 2011 2010
B Debt securities 384,841,630 148,842,715
o AFS Equity investments 271,460 255,580
- 385,113,090 149,098,295
L
3 Available for
[ ] sale
Lo ,
At 1 January 2011 149,098,295
- Additions : 376,288,972
L Disposals (139,920,794)
Net gains / {loss) from changes in fair value {209,756)
o Effect of exchange rates {143,627)
Ll At 31 December 2011 385,113,090
if At 1 January 2010 154,348,038
L Additions 152,280,550
Disposals (158,110,431)
[ Net gains / (loss) from changes in fair value {17,216)
' Effect of exchange rates 597,354
At 31 December 2010 ‘ 149,098,295
(- e
DU Debt securities comprise treasury bills, bonds denominated in RON and Eurobonds issued by
Romanian Ministry of Finance. '
n |
L Available-for-sale instruments are classified as either Level 1 or Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy and their fair value is determined on Level 1 or Level 2 inputs. For Level 1, the prices
Lo considered for fair value determination are the quoted prices from active markets for identical
L.:' assets and liabilities. For Level 2, the inputs used for fair value determination are based on
observable data.
" ; All of the AFS investments are classified as Level 2 within the Fair value hierarchy.
R
L
!
U
-
5
e

LI
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”}, unless otherwise stafed)

-

17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

AFS3 Equity investments held by the Bank are detailed below.

‘ Country of Nature of Shareholding
Investment incorporation business 2011 2010

Sibiu Stock Exchange Romania commodity exchange 26,880 21,600
Casa Romana de Romania clearing house BMFMS 40,500 29,900
Compensatie

TransFonD Romania settlement and clearing 193,803 193,803

) inter-banking transfer

Biroul de Credit Romania 10,277 10,277

271,460 255,580

In 2011 the participation to Sibiu Stock Exchange increased with 5,280 shares granted free of
charge in 2010, at the nominal value of shares RON 1 per share.

The participation to Casa Romana de Compensatie increased due to 10, 600 shares granted
free of charge in 2009, at the nominal value of shares RON 1 per share.

(b} Equity investments

As at1
January
2011 2010 2010
Intesa Sanpaolo Leasing IFN 8,745,616 8,745,612 2,400,612

Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania holds 99,49% of the share capital of INTESA
SANPAOLO LEASING ROMANIA ILF.N S.A., Romanian company located at S-PARK Loc
BUCURESTI str TIPOGRAFILOR nr 11-15, registered at the Romanian Registry of Commerce
under J40/14030/2005 with fiscal number RO17863812.

In January 2011, the Bank has acquired from CIB Lizing Zrt a number of 17 shares in Intesa
Sanpaolo Leasing Romania IFN S.A. at the symbolic price of RON 4. This increase of the
contribution has been approved on January 25, 2011 by the Board of Administration of Intesa
Sanpaclo Romania.

Following this event, as of 31 December 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo Romania SA holds a total
number of 597 (99,49%) shares in Intesa Sanpaoclo Leasing Romania IFN S.A., each with a
nominal value of RON 1,800 per share and CIB Lizing Zrt holds 3 shares (0,51%) at a nominal
value of RON 1,800 per share.

As a result to this impairment test, and because in 2011 Intesa Sanpaolo Leasing made a profit
in amount of RON 2,362,142, there has been no need to diminish the book value.
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'BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011 - -
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unless otherwise stated)

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:

At 1 January 2010 Restated
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2010

At 1 January 2011
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2011

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2010 Restated

Disposals

Depreciation charge for the year Restated
Impairment losses

At 31 December 2010

At 1 January 2011

Disposals

Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment losses

At 31 December 2011

Net book value:
At 1 January 2010 Restated

At 31 December 2010
At 31 December 2011

Land and Computer Other
buildings Hardware assets Total
101,169,742 9,579,195 35,931,466 146,680,403
14,726,940 1,180,150 658,384 16,565,474
{4,107,222) (1,385,313) (9,722,343} (15,214,878)
111,789,460 9,374,032 26,867,507 148,030,999
111,789,461 9,374,832 26,867,507 148,031,800
20,608,038 2,854,130 641,551 24,103,719
{3,465,305) (1,798,168) (2,501,165) (7,764,638)
128,932,194 10,430,794 25,007,893 164,370,881
12,428,205 7.154,818 13,562,259 33,145,282
(2,409,282) (1,404,382) {5,435,152) (9,248,816)
5,154,840 1,984,461 4,802,873 11,942,174
2,356,160 - - 2,356,160
17,529,923 7,734,897 12,929,980 38,194,800
15,173,763 7,734,897 12,930,780 35,839,440
(903,926) (1,795,472) (2,208,182) (4,907,580)
4,307,509 1,830,633 2,681,704 8,819,846
5,282,300 - - 5,282,300
23,859,646 7,770,058 13,404,302 45,034,006
88,741,537 2,424,377 22,369,207 113,535,121
94,259,537 1,639,135 13,937,527 109,836,199
105,072,548 2,660,736 11,603,591 119,336,875

Included within other assets are motor vehicles, furniture and fittings, household equipment, air
conditioning equipment. Included in fixed assets are items adjusted for the hyperinflationary

economy prior to 1 January 2004.

For.goods repossessed, as a result of the foreclosure process for bad debts was calculated an
impairment adjustment as a difference between book value and the fair value from revaluation
of 5,282,300 RON as at 31 December 2011.
The impairment adjustment was booked as depreciation expense for property and equipment.

For the branches closed during 2011 as part of the restructuring plans of the Bank, an
impairment provision was calculated as of 31 December 2010 of 2,356,160 RON which was
booked as other operating expenses as of 31 December 2010.

41



(U TS S (SN SRS RS S A S SRR SV U

I

]
—

(-

o=

o

—_

=

o

I

vrmemy

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON7), unless otherwise stated)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At 1 January 2010 Restated
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2010

At 1 January 2011
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2011

Amortization:

At 1 January 2010 Restated
Disposals

Amortization charge for the year
At 31 December 2010

At 1 January 2011

Disposals

Amortization charge for the year
At 31 December 2011

Net book value:

At 1 January 2010 Restated
At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2011

Other
Computer intangible
software assets TOTAL
24,046,874 109,190 24,156,064
4,585,453 - 4,585,453
(1,104,857) (25,678) {1,130,535)
27,527,470 83,512 27,610,982
27,527,470 83,512 27,610,982
2,513,450 - 2,513,450
(967,697) (71,743) {1,039,440)
29,073,223 11,769 29,084,992
12,137,361 102,275 12,239,636
{(1,103,693) (25,638) {1,129,331)
5,057,289 6,407 5,063,696
16,090,957 83,044 16,174,001
16,090,957 83,044 16,174,001
(967,696) (71,647) {1,039,343)
4,454,868 371 4,455,239
19,578,129 11,768 19,589,897
11,909,513 6,915 11,916,428
11,436,513 468 11,436,981
9,495,094 1 9,495,095

included in intangible assets are computer software licenses (FIBA) and MasterCard licenses.
Amortization of intangible assets is included in ‘Other operating expenses’ in the income

statement.

The remaining average amortization period is 2.5 years

42



iy

- 772 22

o

=

(I

2 0

S G

[

—

S

[

=

C=

=

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

20. OTHER ASSETS

As at 1
2011 2010 January 2010

Deposits paid for rent, electricity 1,850,346 1,935,560 2,009,053
Payment insfruments to be settled 4,747,446 1,295,928 2,690,234
Expenses paid in advance 1,021,863 1,743,623 2,853,071
Sundry debtors 4,518,759 3,955,452 3,077,219
Collateral repossessed - - 12,048,568
Other amounits to be settled - - -
Overdue commissions 3,166,357 2,909,069 -
Prepayments 33,772 26,407 68,845
Other 1,650,606 791,041 2,271,924
Total 16,989,149 12,657,080 25,016,914
Details on overdue commissions are presented below:

As at 1

January

2011 - 2010 2010

Overdue commissions, gross 4,600,537 3,512,849 -
Provision (1,434,180) (603,780) -
Overdue commissions, net 3,166,357 2,909,069 -

The repossessed assets from bad debtors on behalf of non-performing loans from 2009 (with a
total value of 12.048.568 RON) have been reclassified as fixed assets in 2010.

The Bank has decided to transfer them to the fixed assets category because in the past year
the Bank has been unable to sell them and, for the moment, the market for selling such goods is

not favourable.

21. DUE TO BANKS

As at1
2011 2010 January 2010
Sight deposits 83,484,447 299,726,160 132,630,841
Term deposits 340,493,746 645,411,112 195,187,739
ltems in course of collection 8,056,124 5,833,314 4,358,131
Repurchase agreements - - 89,252,410
432,034,317 950,970,586 421,429,121

The interest rate during 2011 for term deposits ranged from 2.00% to 9,50% for RON (2010:
from 3.30% to 7.63%) and there were no term deposits to banks in EUR during the year.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

{All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unless otherwise stated)

22, DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 1 January

2011 2010 2010
Current accounts 261,450,797 250,959,234 213,763,903
Depaosits due to companies and individuals 1,658,686,326 1,208,970,173 831,265,141
Resfricted deposits 39,405,290 48,835,162 45,188,240
Total 1,859,542,413 1,508,764,569 1,090,217,284

Included in restricted deposits were deposits for guarantee of proper work performed as at 31
December 2011 in the amount of RON 16,395,058 (2010: 20,875,357). Other types of deposits
that are found in position “Restricted deposits” are collateral cash ( in the amount of RON
16,809,122) for letters of guarantee issued; collateral cash (in the amount of RON 6,201,110)
for loans.

The average interest rate during 2011 for term deposits ranged from 4.79% to 5.63% for RON
(2010: from 6.03% to 8.09%) and from 2.32% to 3.25% for EUR (2010: from 3.75% to 5.88%).

23. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

As at 1
2011 2010 January 2010
Loans from Intesa Sanpaolo Group 1,064,581,051 839,085,826 975,960,375
Total 1,064,581,051 839,085,826 975,960,375

The amount from Intesa Sanpaolo Group comprises loans received from Intesa Sanpaolo Bank
Ireland, Societe Europeenne de Banque SA Luxemburg and a subordinated loan granted by
Intesa Sanpaclo Bank Ireland PLC. Total amount granted is EUR 230,000,000 (2010: EUR
180,000,000) and a subordinated loan of EUR 15,000,000 (2010: EUR 15,000,000).

The amounts are fully drawn and used at this moment and there are no restrictions to demand
early reimbursement.

The Bank also has emergengy facilities from Group, which are committed but not withdrawn in
the amount of RON 215,985,000 (EURO 50,000,000) from Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A..

The first loan was received on 29 June 2007 in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 with an interest
of 1,657% is repayable in one tranche on 29 June 2015.

The second loan was received on 29 June 2007, in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 with an
interest of 1,637% is repayable in one tranche on 27 June 2014,

The third loan was received on 26 August 2011 in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 with an
interest of 4,514% and is repayable in one tranche on 26 August 2014.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei {(“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

The fourth loan was received on 15 November 2007 in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 with an
interest of 2,012% and is repayable in one tranche on 08 November 2013,

The fifth loan was received on 24 December 2007 in the amount of EUR 30,000,000 with an
interest of 2,306% and is repayable in one tranche on 17 December 2013.

The sixth loan was received on 23 October 2008 in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 with an
interest of 5,584% and is repayable in one tranche on 20 October 2014,

The seventh loan was received on 27 October 2008 in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 with an
interest of 5,584% and is repayable in one tranche on 20 October 2014.

The eighth loan was received on 17 October 2011 in the amount of EUR 30,000,000 with an
interest of 5,982% and is repayable in one tranche on 17 October 2017.

The nine loan was received on 31 January 2011 in the amount of EUR 50,000,000 with an
interest of 4,41% and is repayable in one tranche.on 28 February 2013.

The subordinated loan from Intesa Sanpaolo Irefand was received on 17 October 2005 in
amount of EUR 15,000,000 with an interest rate of 3,235% and is repayable on 17 October
2015. ‘

Upon the insolvency of the borrower the lender’s claims arising from this subordinated loan

agreement will rank behind those of all other creditors of the borrower and will rank ahead only
of the sharehoiders of the borrower.

24. PROVISIONS

As at1
January
2011 2010 2010

Provision for risk and charges 1,640,401 1,460,130 323,000
Provision for litigation 1,806,350 2,106,350 906,350
Provision for letiers of guarantee 4,107,230 3,838,225 2,672,893
Provisions for personnel expenses 8,708,615 6,534,401 5,882,448
Provisions for closing branches 259,775 3,506,207 -
Provisions for merger 280,000 - -
Total 16,802,371 17,445,313 9,784,691

Provision for risk and charges includes the provision made for audit services (RON 371,601),
the provision made for additional building taxes and related penalties possibly owed to local tax
authorities budgets, starting with year 2009 and until year 2014, the prescription date (RON
1,200,000} and provision for other expenses (RON 68,800).

The outflow for audit services is certain and expected to take place within the next 12 months.
The outflow for additional building taxes and related penalties possibly owed to local tax
authorities budgets is uncertain (it depends whether the local tax authorities will conduct any
investigations until the prescription date and what the results of those investigations will be) and
expected to take place until year 2014, at the very latest.

In 2011, the Bank established a new provision for litigation for a case and released the provision
for an older case because the court suspended the legal proceedings at the request of
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counterparty. The outflow associated fo Provision for litigation is uncertain (it depends on the
court’s decisions) and the timing of the outflow is also uncertain (as it depends on the court’s
planning of the hearings).

Provisions for letters of guarantee and Provisions for personnel expenses are revalue monthly
and the total provision amount required is adjusted monthly, either through booking additional
provisions or reversing from the amounts already provisioned. The outflow associated with
these two types of provisions is uncertain, but the fiming of the outflow cannot exceed one
calendar year for Provision for personnel expenses, while for Provision for letters of guarantee,
it cannot be determined exacily.

Provisions for closing branches are used {decreased) as the related expenses for closing the
branches are booked. The outflow in this case is certain and the timing of the outflow is no later
than the date at which the branches have actually been closed, which is less than three
calendar months from 31 December 2011.

Provision for merger is related to the expenses for the.merger process between Intesa '
Sanpaclo Romania and CR Firenze which is set to to take place in June 2012.

46



iy

cLe'shrLL 0cL09p'L - LOPrES‘9 0se‘o0L‘e 10Z2'905°¢ GzZ'ges’'e Joqwesa( LE I
0L2'2L¥") - - 026'04S 05£'906 - - (1eaA suo uey) aiow)
IUSND-LION

£70°'896'GL 0€L‘09% L - 18Y'CO6'S 000°00Z°L 202908 §22'9e8'e (1204 auo uey ss91)
waung

cLe'shbLL 0SL09F L - LOF'PES‘D 0GE901°C 20Z2'905°¢ gzz'ace'e Jaquisdad LE W
- - - - - - paslaAal sjunowe pasnup
(e19'y9€'0L) (0o0'ces) - (6Z9'ce'9) - (69¢°/S¥) (519'068°2) pazin
GeZ'szo'8lL 0€1°0£9°L - Z8s'seL’L 000'002'L 0/G'€96'E L¥6'G50'Y 1eaf sy) Buunp Buisuy
L69'V8L'6 000'€Z¢ - 8b¥'z88's 05£'906 - £68'2/9'2 Krenuer |y

sayouelq
|e101 /Y0 19619y |]auuosiad uonebn 8inso[n s$.97

:SMOJI0} SE SI (1.0Z Buunp suoisiaoid Ul JUBWBAOW au |

11£°208°91 LOv'Ov9‘L 000°08Z 519°80.°8 05£'008°) G11'652 0gzZ‘ 0LV loquedaq LE W
91¥290C - - 162 96€ 0GE'00F°L Gl.'65C T - (1eah auo uey) siow)
Jusund-UoN

$66'6€2 7L LoV 0P9'L 000'082 - pze'zie'e 000'00% - 0£Z' 201y (Jesk suo uew ss3)
uaungd

LL£Z08°91 LoV Or9°L 000082 S19'80.'8 05£908°L 611652 0€Z°I0LY Jaquwieoeq LE Y
- - - - - - - poslansl sjunowie pasnufn
(L60'cos'gL)  {¥8£209) - (oL1'geL9) (000°002) (Zevorz'e) {soL'gLz'g) paziin
6171°292'81 559'28/ 000°082 Ay AR 00000 - 021°28v'8 Jeak ay) Buunp Buisly
sLe'stb'LL 0SL09%°L - LOY'PES 0S£‘901°‘2 10Z°'905' Gzz'8cg's fenuep | 3y

sayouelq
|eyol _ NE:10) Ty JIabBaap [puuosiad uonebiy ainsol) .91

1SMOJ[0) SE SI | L0Z Bulnp suosiaoid Ul JUSIBAOW 8 |

(pojers osimisizo ssapun ‘( NOY,,} 197 usluBWOY Ul passalidxe aie SJunowe jiy)
1 1L0Z 1oquiada LE papus Jealk ay) 104
SINIWILVYLS TVYIONVYNI4d 31vVHdvd3as 3HL Ol S310N

o o o _ ) <w.<_z<zo~_ O1OVdNVS VSALNI VIVIONIWOO VONVE
CCY DT o oy oI Iy Dy ooy o3y ooy oo oy Iy ooy Uy Loy ) I3y Do Lo




S

JRS—

-

{

o

—y

I

(I

ey

AR VT SNOIR S

DT

| IR U

| -

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

25. OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 1 January

2011 2010 2010
Taxes due to the State Budget 1,063,898 897,508 349,533
Salary to be paid 4,396,070 4,289,131 2,778,165
Expense accruals 242 421 257,872 114,216
Commercial instruments 4,747,445 1,295,929 2,690,234
Commission for LG's 2,563,958 2,194,073 2,462,993
Foreign Exchange Position 1,945,095 1,188,647 1,980,726
MoneyGram creditors 1,342.245 657,176 -
Other liabilities 1,428,882 465,784 190,602
Total 17,730,014 11,653,641 10,566,559

26. SHARE CAPITAL

As at 1 January

2011 2010 2010
Registered share capital 814,111,110 376,111,110 251,111,110
Restatement in accordance with |AS 29 40,174,800 40,174,800 40,174,800
Total share capital 854,285,910 416,285,910 291,285,910

The authorized and issued share capital as at 31 December 2011 amounts RON 814,111,110
and comprises 81,411,111 shares (2010: 37,611,111 shares) with a nominal value of RON 10
each. All issued shares are fully paid and carry one vote.

In March, 2011 the Bank increased its share capital with RON 115,000,000 by issuing
11,500,000 shares with a nominal value of RON 10 per share, all of them subscribed by Intesa
Sanpaolo S.p.A. The minority shareholder Intesa Sanpaoclo Holding did not subscribed any
share in this capital increase.

In December 2011 the Bank issued a number of 32,300,000 new shares at a nominal value of
RON 10,00 per share (fotal RON 323,000,000), 32,175,338 shares subscribed by Intesa
Sanpaolo S.p.A. and 124,662 shares subscribed by Intesa Sanpaolo Holding. The capital
increase was carried out exclusively through cash contribution of existing shareholders.
Following the share capital increase and full payment of the amounts of new shares subscribed
by shareholders, on 31 December 2011 the bank's subscribed and paid up share capital
amounts to RON 814,111,110.

Following the capital increase, the capital structure as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010 is as follows:
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2011 2010
Shareholder Number of Number of
shares % shares %

Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A ltalia 81,096,905 99,61 37,421,567 99.50
Intesa Sanpaolo Holding 314,206 0,39 189.544 0.50
Total 81,411,111 100.00 37,611,111 100.00
27. ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

At 31 December 2009 (18,817,265)
Restatement of fixed assets 4,706,449
At 1 January 2010 Restated (14,110,816)
Loss for the year before restatement (43,236,977)
Transfer from retained profit {760,765)

At 31 December 2010
Loss for the year

At 31 December 2011

(58,108,558)

(141,022,863)

(199,131,426)

Accumulated deficit has been changed following the adjustment to the book values of fixed
assets. The increase to the value of fixed assets established as a result of the hyperinflation
adjustment has not been amortized for the period 2005-2010; as a result, in 2011 the
depreciation and amortization expense for the period 2005-2010 have been computed and
bocked which has impacted accumulated deficit in the following manner:

- as of 1 January 2010 the depreciation and amortization expense for the period 2005-

2009 of 4,706,449 RON,;

- as of 31 December 2010 the depreciation and amortization expense for the year

2010 of 760,765 RON.

28. RESERVES

Available-for- Statutory Other capital

sale reserve reserve reserve Total
At 1 January 2010 205,491 6,504,954 10,675,035 17,385,480
Increase - - - -
Net gains/(loss) on available-for-sale (14,461) - - {14,461)
At 31 December 2010 191,030 6,504,954 10,675,035 17,371,019
At 1 January 2011 191,030 6,504,954 10,675,035 17,371,019
Increase - - 15,880 15,880
Net gains/(loss) on available-for-sale {176,196) - - {176.196)
At 31 December 2011 14,834 6,504,954 10,690,915 17,210,703

At 31 December 2011, statutory reserves inlude: legal reserve amounting 6,198,053 RON and
general reserve for the credit risk in the amount of 306,201 RON.
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
{(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

At 31 December 2011, other capital reserves include: general reserve for the credit risk
(10,056,102 RON), share premium transferred to other reserves (396,094 RON) and other
reserves (238,712 RON).

29. ' FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

All financial instruments carried at fair value are categorized in three categories defined as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted market prices

Level 2 - Valuation techniques (market observable)

Level 3 - Valuation techniques (non-marked cbservable)

As at 31 December 2011, the Bank held the following financial instruments measured at fair
value:

Assets measured at fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivative Financial Instruments 195,818 - 195,818 -
Financial investments
available-for-sale 384,841,630 - 384,841,630 -
Liabilities measured at fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivative Financial Instruments "48,138 - 48,138 -

As at 31 December 2010:

Assets measured at fair value Total Level1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivative Financial Instruments 10,623 - 10,623 -

Financial investments available-for-sale

148,842,715 - 148,842,715 -
LiabHities measured at fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Leve! 3
Derivative Financial Instruments 144,355 ) 144 355 )

During the year 2011, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurement.
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Fair values of financial assets and liahilities

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the bank’s
financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does
not include the fair values of non—financial assets and non—financial liabilities

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets
and liabilities not presented on the Bank’s balance sheet at their fair value. Bid prices are used
to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are applied for liabilities.

2011 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount value amount value
Financial assets
Cash and balance with central
banks 558,219,950 558,219,950 509,516,437 509,516,437
Due from banks 156,765,340 156,765,340 104,733,945 194,733,945
Loans and advances to customers  3,042,126,564 3,042,126,564 2,956,322,661 2,956,322 661

3,757,111,854  3,757,111,854 3,660,573,043 3,660,573,043

Financial liabilities
Due to banks 432,034,317 432,034,317 950,970,586 050,970,586
Due to customers 1,850,542,413 1,859,542,413 1,508,764,569 1,508,764,569
Other borrowed funds 1,064,581,051  1,064,581,051 839,085,826 839,085,826

3,356,157,781

3,366,157,781

3,298,820,981

3,298,820,981

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for
those financial instruments which are not already recorded at fair value in the financial
statements:

Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (less than one year) it
is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also
applied to demand deposits, and savings accounts without a specific maturity.

Fixed rate financial instruments

The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated
by comparing market interest rates when they were first recognised with current market rates for
similar financial instruments.
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30. ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

2011 2010
Cash on hand 60,067,270 57,056,423
Current account with the Central Bank 498,152,680 452,460,014
Due from banks with maturity less than 3 months 156,765,340 194,733,945
Total 714,985,290 704,250,382

Current accounts with Central Bank include mandatory reserve deposits. These are available
for use in the Bank's day to day operations, provided that on a month average, the Bank

maintains the minimum required by law.

(b) Change in operating assets

2011 2010
Net change in financial assets HFT {185,195) 599,117
Net change in loans and advance to customers {(85,803,903) (625,422,117)
Net change in other assets (4,332,070) 12,359,835
Total (90,321,168) (612,463,165)

(c) Change in operating liabilities

2011 2010
Net change in financial liabilities HFT (96,217) {702,076)
Net change in due to banks (472,336,852) 542,211,416
Net change in due to customers 350,777,843 418,547,286
Net change in other liabilities 6,076,374 1,087,081
Total (115,578,852) 961,143,707

(d) Non-cash items included in profit before tax

2011 2010
Depreciation of property and equipment 14,102,146 10,843,277
Amortization of other intangible assets 4,455,239 5,063,696
Reversed provisions LG&LC 253,293 1,769,166
Provisions (896,235) 5,891,456
Other non-monetary items (3,276,253) (5,062,798)
Total 14,638,190 18,504,797
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31. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011

ASSETS

Cash and balance with Central Banks
Due from banks

Loans and advances to custemers
Derivative financial instruments
Financial investments available-for-sale
Equity investments

Intangible assets

Property and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Due to banks

Due to customers

Derivative financial mstruments
Other borrowed funds

Current income tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net

As at 31 December 2010

ASSETS

Cash and balance with Central Banks
Due from banks

Loans and advances to customers
Derivative financial instruments
Financial investments available-for-sale
Equity investments

intangible assets

Property and equipment

Deferred income tax asseis

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Less than Over
12 months 12 months Total
558,219,950 - 558,219,950
156,765,340 - 156,765,340
1,279,375,800 1,762,750,764 3,042,126,564
195,818 - 195,818
314,290,294 70,822,796 385,113,090
- 8,745,616 8,745,616
- 9,495,095 9,495,085
- 119,336,875 119,336,875
- 17,744,884 17,744,884
16,989,149 - 16,989,159
2,325,836,351 1,988,896,030 4,314,732,381
432,034,317 - 432,034,317
1,822,720,527 36,821,886 1,859,542,413
48,138 - 48,138
- 1,064,581,051 1,064,581,051
17,730,014 - 17,730,014
16,802,371 - 16,802,371
2,289,335,367  1,101,402,937 3,390,738,304
36,500,984 887,493,093 923,994,077
Less than Qver
12 months 12 months Total
509,516,437 - 509,516,437
194,733,945 - 194,733,945
1,187,027,634 1,769,295,027 2,956,322,661
10,623 ' - 10,623
127,504,275 21,594,020 149,098,295
- 8,745,612 8,745,612
- 11,436,981 11,436,981
- 109,836,199 109,836,199
- 2,883,717 2,883,717
12,657,080 12,657,080

2,031,449,994

1,923,791,556

3,955,241,550
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LIABILITIES

Due to banks 950,970,586 - 950,970,586
Due to customers 1,486,212,514 22,552,055 1,508,764,569
Derivative financial instruments 144,355 - 144,355
Other borrowed funds 217,789,826 621,296,000 839,085,826
Current income tax liabilities - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities - - -
Other liabilities 11,653,641 - 11,653,641
Provisions 17,445,313 17,445,313
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,684,216,235 643,848,055 3,328,064,290
Net (652,766,241) 1,279,943,501 623,177,260

32. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Bank issues guarantees and letters of credit on behalf of its customers. The market and
credit risk on these financial instruments, as well as the operating risk is similar to that arising
from granting of loans. In the event of a claim on the Bank as a result of a customer’s default on
a guarantee these instruments also present a degree of liquidity risk to the Bank.

The aggregate amount of outstanding gross commitments and contingencies as at period end
was:

2011 2010
Letters of guarantee 394,521,104 165,783,423
Unused loan facilities and letters of credit 355,581,155 308,020,051
Letters of guarantee issued for other banks 106,016,284 80,581,809
Contingency lines 215,885,000 428,480,000

Total 1,072,103,543 982,865,283

32. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

The letters of guarantee include letters of guarantee in amount of RON 79,867,897 (2010:
79,796,343) issued for credit risk in respect of loans granted by, Intesa Sanpaolo Ireland, Banka
Koper, Intesa Mediocredito SPA Milano and Banca Infrastrutture Innovazione e Svilippo Spa to
Romanian customers.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2011 the Bank had capital expenditure contracted for but not recognized in
these financial statements of RON 17,180,435 (2010: 19,873,724). The Bank's management is
confident that future net revenues and funding will be sufficient to cover-these commitments.

On May, 1% 2010 the Bank has sold its car fleet that were not previously fully depreciated. The
selling price was approximately equal to the net book value of the car fleet at the date of the
transaction (3,073,914 RON). The same cars have been subsequently leased from the buyer,
through a lease agreement. The lease agreement does not include a clause regarding the
possibility of buying the assets by the Bank, at the end of the contract. The result of the sale
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), uniess otherwise sfated)

and leaseback transaction has been an operational lease agreement. The value of the monthly
invoice issued according to the sale-and-lease back contract is 33,274 Euro.

The future operating lease payments committed are disclosed below:

2011 2010
No later than 1 year 17,180,435 19,873,724
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 25,881,598 39,269,197
Later than 5 years 11,586,617 11,874,664

Future minimum rental under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as
follows:

2011 2010
No later than 1 year 635,073 154,453
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years - 1,838,024 347,520

Later than 5 years - -
Tax Contingencies

Romanian tax legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can occur
frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and
activity of the Bank may be challenged by the relevant regional and State authorities. Recent
events within Romania suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive position in its
interpretation of the legislation and assessments and, as a result, it is possible that transactions
and activities that have not been challenged in the past may be challenged. As such, significant
additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal pericds remain open to review
by the authorities in respect of taxes for 4 calendar years preceding the year of review. Under
certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

As at 31 December 2011, Management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation
is appropriate and that the Bank’s tax positions will be sustained.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a member of the Intesa Sanpaoclo Group. The Bank's immediate parent is Intesa
Sanpaolo SpA, a bank incorporated in ltaly, which directly owns 99.61 % of the ordinary shares.
The minority shareholder is Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International S.A Luxembourg which
directly owns 0.39 %.

The related parties considered for reporting purposes include Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A., Societe
Europeenne de Banque S.A., Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland, Central-European International
Bank, Intesa Sanpaclo Banka DD Sarajevo, Intesa Sanpaolo Branch Tokyo, Banka Koper,
Intesa Sanpaoclo Card, Banca CR Firenze Romania, VUB Banka Bratislava, Vseobecna
Uverova Banka AS Branch Praga, Intesa Mediocredito SpA Milano, Intesa Sanpaolo Holding
International S.A. Luxembourg, Intesa Sanpaolo Leasing Romania which are all entities
controlled by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

A number of banking transactions is entered into with related parties in the normal course of
business. These include loans, deposits and foreign currency transactions, acquisition of other
services.
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The volumes of related party transactiohs, outstanding balances at the year-end, and relating
expense and income for the year are as follows:

Transactions with key management personnel of the Bank

Balance as at \ Balance as at
31 December Income 31 December Income
2011 2011 2010 2010
Key management personnel of the
Bank:
Current account 185,484 16,227 1,465,157 17,208
Deposits © 1,657,406 22,082 1,190,044 137,247

The transactions with ,key management personnel” represent only transactions related to
current accounts and deposits, without any other benefits.

Transacfions with other related parties

In addition to transactions with key management, the Bank enters into transactions with entities
with significant influence over the Bank. The following table shows the outstanding balance and
the corresponding interest during the year.

Amounts owed Amounts owed to
by related parties related parties

Interest from Interest to Balance as at 31 Balance as at 31
related parties related parties December December

Entities with significant
influence over the
Bank;

2011 28,516,775 33,545,575 4,733,107 326,742,199
2010 28,845,378 36,185,793 47,676,415 727,613,233

Transactions with subsidiaries

Amounts owed by Amounts owed to

related parties related parties
Interest from Interest to Balance as at 31 Balance as at 31
related parties related parties December December
Intesa Sanpaolo
l.easing Romania:
2011 1,471,698 18,579 40,440,048 1,926,796
2010 1,404,044 - 45,164,380 -

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The above mentioned balances arose from the ordinary course of business. The interest
charged to and by related parties is at normal commercial rates. All amounts are expected to be
settled in cash. Qutstanding balances at year end are unsecured. There have been no
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable. For year ended 31
December 2011 the Bank has not made a provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed
by related parties. (2010: Nil}.

56



|

=

[

-

=

S

=

.

-
-

IDR T

T

I WU S

e

R N

L2

|

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34, RISK MANAGEMENT
34.1 Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities but is managed through a process of ongeoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This
process of risk management is critical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each individual
within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The
Bank is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, the latter being only relevant for
non-trading risks. It is also subject to various operating risks.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the
environment, technology and industry. The Bank's policy is to monitor those business risks
through the Bank’s strategic planning process.

Risk management structure
The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks. However,
there are separate independent bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk management strategies and principles.

Management Committee
The Management Committee has the responsibility to monitor the overall risk process within the
Bank.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and
implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Risk Committee is responsible for
managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels.

Risk Management Department

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related
procedures to ensure an independent control process is maintained. Is also responsible for
monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the Bank. Each business
group has its own unit which is responsible for the independent control of risks, including
monitoring the risk of exposures against limits and the assessment of risks of new products and
structured transactions. This unit also ensures the complete capture of the risks in risk
measurement and reporting sysiems.

Bank Treasui’y
Bank Treasury is responsible for managing the Bank's assets and liabilities and the overall
financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Bank.

Internal Audit

The Bank’s policy is that risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually
by the internal audit function, which examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the
Bank’s compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all assessments
with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All-amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Basis of preparation and po!iéies

Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a
financial loss for the Bank by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is the most important
risk for the Bank’s business; management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.
Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances. There is
also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments and
financial guarantees. Banks investment in in securities and bills are limited to those
governmental for which credit risk related to them is limited. The credit risk management and
control are centralized in Risk Management Department and reported to the Board of Directors,
executive management and various committees regularly.

Credit risk measurement
(a) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loan and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level,
the Bank reflects three components (i) the ‘probability of default’ by the client or counterparty on
its contractual obligations; (if) current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future
development, from which the Bank derive the ‘exposure at default’; and (iii) the likely recovery
ratio on the defaulted obligations (the ‘loss given default’).

These credit risk measurements, which reflect expected loss (the ‘expected loss model’} and are
required by the Basel Commitiee on Banking Regulations and the Supervisory Practices (the
Basel Committee), are embedded in the Bank’s daily operational management. The operational
measurements can be contrasted with impairment allowances required under |IAS 39, which are
based on losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date (the ‘incurred loss model’)
rather than expected losses

(i) The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating
tools tailored to the various categories of counterparty. They have been developed internally
based on statistical analysis of customer behavior in given circumstances. Clients of the Bank
are segmented into six rating classes. The Bank’s rating scale, which is shown below, reflects the
range of default probabilities defined for each rating class. This means that, in principle,
exposures migrate hetween classes as the assessment of their probability of default changes.
The rating tools are kept under review and upgraded as necessary. The Bank regularly validates
the performance of the rating and their predictive power with regard to default events.

Bank’s internal ratings scale

Bank’s rating

{according to regulatory classes) Description of the grade

Standard Performing
Under observation(Watchlist) Performing
Substandard Performing
Doubtful FPerforming
Loss Performing

Default Non performing

The internal rating system used to determine the probability of default is build using the local
regulatory requirements. That is, each loan is classified in an internal rating class ranging from
A to E based on its financial and socio-demographic characteristics. Further on, this appiication
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(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei {(“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

rating is then integrated with the possible delays in payment the obligor may register and leads
to the above mentioned transactional classification from Standard to Loss, which for our
purpose here are performing classes. It is then assessed the probability that each loan, given its
transactional rating migrates to the Default category.

(i) Exposure at default is based on the amounts the Bank expects to be owed at the time of
default. For example, for a [oan this is the carrying value. For a commitment, the Bank includes
any amount already drawn plus the further amount that may have been drawn by the time of
default, should it occur.

(iif) Loss given default or loss severity represents the Bank’s expectation of the extent of loss on a
claim should default occur. It is expressed as percentage loss per unit of exposure and typically
varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit mitigation.

.(b) Debt securities and other bills

The investments are exclusively in Governmental bonds and bills are viewed as a way to gain a
better credit quality mapping and maintain a readily available source to meet the funding

-requirement at the same time.

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified -
in particular, to individual counterparties and Banks, groups of customers, related parties and to
industries and countries.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or Banks of borrowers, and to geographical and industry
segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more
frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product,
industry sector and by country are approved periodically by the Board of Directors.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted by sub-limits covering on-
and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to frading items such as
forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and
potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these
lending limits where appropriate.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

(a) Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of
these is the taking of security for funds advances, which is common practice. The Bank
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk

mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

- Mortgages over residential properties: Charges over business assets such as premises,
inventory and accounts receivable, commercial effects;
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34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured; revolving individual
credit facilities are generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss the Bank
will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed
for the relevant individual loans and advances.

{b) Derivatives

The Bank maintains strict control limits on the hedging capacity of the derivatives held. At any one
time, the amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of instruments that are
favorable to the Bank (i.e., assets where their fair value is positive}, which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express the volume of instruments
outstanding. This credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending limits with
customers, together with potential exposures from market movements. Collateral or other security
is not usually obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the Bank
requires margin deposits from counterparties.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in
the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all settlement risk ansmg from the
Bank’s market transactions on any single day.

(¢) Master netting arrangements

The Bank does not operate any master netting arrangements.

(d) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans.
Documentary and commercial letters of credit - which are written undertakings by the Bank on
behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated
amount under specific terms and conditions - are collateralized usually by cash deposited by the
ordering customer, for which the bank is not exposed to credit risk from these types of
transactions.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the

form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to

extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating system described above focus on credit-quality mapping from the inception of
the lending activities and is updated based on monthly reviewed behavioral indicators. In
contrast, impairment provisions are recognized for financial reporting purposes only for losses
that have been incurred at the balance sheet date based on objective evidence of impairment.
Due to the different methodologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in
the financial statements are usually lower than the amount determined from the expected loss
model that is used for internal operational management and banking regulation purposes.
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34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued})

The impairment provision shown in the balance sheer at year-end is derived from each of the six
internal rating grades

Risk measurement and reporting systems

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank.
These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Bank as well as the
level of risk that the Bank is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries. In
addition, the Bank's policy is to measure and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in relation
to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities.

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyse,
control and identify risks on a timely basis. This information is presented and explained to the
Board of Directors, the Risk Committee, and the head of each business division. The report
includes aggregate credit exposure, credit metric forecasts, Value at Risk (VaR), liquidity ratios
and risk profile changes. On a quarterly basis, detailed reporting of industry, customer and
geographic risks takes place. Senior management assesses the appropriateness of the
allowance for credit losses on a monthly basis. The Board of Directors receives a
comprehensive risk report once a quarter which is designed. to provide all the necessary
information to assess and conclude on the risks of the Bank.

For all levels throughout the Bank, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed
in order to ensure that all business divisions have access to extensive, necessary and up-to-
date information.

Risk mitigation

As part of its overall risk management, the Bank uses derivatives, insurances and other
instruments to manage exposures resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign currencies,
operational risks, credit risks, and exposures arising from forecast transactions.

In accordance with the Bank’s policy, the risk profile of the Bank is assessed before entering
into hedge transactions, which are autharized by the appropriate level of seniority within the
Bank. The effectiveness of hedges is assessed by the Risk Management Department (based on
economic considerations rather than the IFRS hedge accounting regulations). The effectiveness
of all the hedge relationships is monitored by the Risk Management Department monthly. In
situations of ineffectiveness, the Bank will enter into a new hedge relationship to mitigate risk on
a continuous basis.

The Bank actively uses collateral to reduce its credit risks (see below).

The Bank is also covered against some of the operational risks by means of an insurance policy
at the Bank level (Banker's Blanket Bond and Electronic and Computer Crime), and Group
level.
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34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued})

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Bank's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Bank's policies and procedures include
specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of
credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the Bank
to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

34.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank wi!lhin.cur a loss because its customers or counterpéi‘ties fail

to discharge their contractual obligations. The Bank manages and controls credit risk by setting
limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for
geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitering exposures in relation to such
[imits.

The Bank has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of
possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions,
Counterparty limits are established by the use of a credit risk classification system, which
assigns each counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision. The credit
quality review process aims to allow the Bank to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks
to which it is exposed and take corrective action.

Derivative financial instruments
Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with
positive fair values, as recorded on the statement of financial position. In the case of credit
derivatives, the Bank is also exposed to or protected from the risk of default of the underlying
entity referenced by the derivative.

With gross-seftled derivatives, the Bank is also exposed fo a settlement risk, being the risk that
the Bank honors its obligation but the counterparty fails to deliver the counter-value.

Credit-related commitments risks

The Bank makes available to its customers guarantees which may require that the Bank makes
payments on their behalf and enters into commitments to extend credit lines to secure their
liquidity needs. Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby letters of credit) commit the
Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally related
to the import or export of goods. Such commitments expose the Bank to similar risks to loans
and are mitigated by the same control processes and policies.
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34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk concentrations: maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral and other credit enhancements

The Bank’s concentrations of risk are managed by client/counterparty, and by industry sector.
The maximum credit exposure to any client or counterparty as of 31 December 2011 was 219
millions of RON (2010: 85 millions of RON) both gross and net of collaterals.

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
statement of financial position, including derivatives, by industry. Where financial instruments
are recorded at fair value, the amounts shown represent the current credit risk exposure but not
the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOL.O ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

{All amountis are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on product type and assessment of the
credit risk of the counterparty.

Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation
parameters. ‘

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:
« For securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securities
s For derivatives: forward exchange rate transactions, cash
e For commercial lending, charges over real estate properties, inventory and trade
receivables
o For retail lending, mortgages over residential properties.

The Bank also obtains guarantees from parent companies for loans to customers.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in
accordance with the underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained
during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.

It is the Bank’s policy to dispose'of repossessed properties in an orderly fashion. The proceeds
are used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim. In general, the Bank does not occupy
repossessed properties for business use.

The Bank does not have in place or used any master netting agreements..

The use of collaterals occurs in the moment when the legal enforcement procedure for the
debtors unable to reimburse is started.

After the execution procedure is approved by the court, the bank executor proceed with the
following actions: '

-garnishment on the bank accounts within 15 days from the notification to the debtor

-for movable assets the executor will summon the debtor to pay within one day and after the
expiration of the summons will move to seize personal property, followed by assessment of the
asset (creditor and debtor agree or expertise) and the auction is set after at least two weeks
after the seizure.

for real estate, the executor will make the minutes of the situation (identification and
description of property). Will issue and communicate the summons within 15 days and after the
expiration of the summons will establish the sale price for the assets at the auction. The auction
takes place at least 30 days after display at the auction block.

In some cases the execution process can be suspended following the appeals, insolvency
procedures.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

{All amounis are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”}, unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk exposure for each internal credit risk rating

Corporate

Consumers &Small Business **Total 2011

-

Bank’s credit rating

Total Exposure Total Exposure

b4
——

-

S

i

PR B

(—=

L

-

£

[

-

C:

(2

Ty

(-

Standard 79.263.457 923.111.174 1.002.504.941
Under Observation 132.190.941 148.803.039 280.993.980
Substandard 210.190.354 258.087.983 469.178.337
Doubtful 128.996.857 97.579.369 226.576.226
Loss 66.725.074 498.892.023 565.617.097
Individually impaired 24.583.194 472.803.099 497.386.293
Total 6541.949.877 2.400.176.687 3.042.126.564
Corporate
&Small

Bank’s credit rating =~ _Consumers Business *Total 2010

Total Total

Exposure Exposure

Standard 189,590,980 1,048,617,979 1,238,208,969
Under Observation 107,985,734 233,002,915 340,988,649
Substandard 123,577,683 299,821,264 423,398,947
Doubfful 54,219,491 193,235,273 247,454,764
Loss 27,102,290 330,475,270 357,577,560
Individually impaired 13,806,359 334,887,413 348,693,772
Total 516,282,547 2,440,040,114 2,956,322,661

Notes:

*The Total amount for loans includes principal and interest and excludes provisions and
deferred commissions

** The Total amount for loans includes principal and interest and excludes provisions ,cost of
credit, deferred commissions and interest adjustment

Bank's Credit Rating, divided into Standard, Under Observation, Substandard, Doubtful and
Loss is according to the National Bank of Romania rules.

Probability of Default — (PD) — the probability that the counterparty goes into default within a one
year time horizon

It is the Bank’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio.
This facilitates focused management of the applicable risks and the comparison of credit
exposures across all lines of business, geographic regions and products. The rating system is
supported by a variety of financial analytics, combined with processed market information to
provide the main inputs for the measurement of counterparty risk.

All internal risk ratings are tailored to the various categories and are derived in accordance with
the Bank’s rating policy.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (' "RON”), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans by class of financial assets

Loans and advances less than 90 days past due are not considered impaired, unless other
information is available to indicate the contrary. Net amount of loans and advances by class to

S

{

C

J—
s

.

-

customers that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

[.ess than 31to 60 61 to 90 More than
31 December 2011 30 days days days 91 days Total
RON RON RON RON RON
LLoans and advances to
customers
Corporate lending 183 - - - 183
Small business lending 108.657.283  29.130.105  62.033.157 1.835 109.822.380
Consumer lending 29.727.655 9.464.727 13.039.031 - 52.231.413
Residential mortgages 19.481.872 2.808.358 2.482.270 - 24.772.500
Other 32.010 6.065 527.251 47 565.373
* 157.899.003 41,409,255  78.081.709 1.882 277.391.849
Less than 31to 60 61 to 90 More than
31 December 2010 30 days days days 91 days Total
RON RON RON RON RON
Loans and advances to
customers
Corporate lending - - 3,618,186 - 3,618,186
Small business lending 91,945,254 65,923,393 129,519,915 - 287,388,562
Consumer lending 24,909,649 6,984,610 9,443,301 - 41,337,560
Residential mortgages 10,398,785 2,118,824 1,621,392 - 14,039,001
Other 37,210 - - - 37,910
* 127,291,598 75,026,827 144,102,784 ~ 346,421,219

Notes:

_.__ Y

==
—

.

I

£

{7

The past due analysis is based upon the total exposure for one client, classified as past due.

If one client has more than one loan, the past due days that are higher will contaminate the rest
of the loans.

The Total section includes the sum of loans classified as Past due but not impaired, split
according to the above mentioned gap.

* The Total amount of loans refers to principal plus interest net of impairment allowance.

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation
techniques commonly used for the corresponding assets )

The value of collateral that the Bank holds relating to loans individually determined to be
impaired at 31 December 2011 amounts to 795 millions RON (2010: 478 millions RON). The
collateral consists of cash, letters of guarantee and properties.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 .

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Carrying amount by class of financial assets whose terms have been renegotiated

The table below shows the carrying amount of renegotiated financial assets, by class.

2011 2010

Loans and advances to customers

Corporate lending 2,954,505 ‘ 3,618,186
Small business lending 404,218,577 400,164,000
Consumer lending ) 3,179,867 1,434,757
Residential mortgages 651,798 485,192
Other 669,533 -
* 411,674,280 405,702,135

Notes:

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external
management plans, modification and deferral of payments. ‘

Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of
local management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept
under continuous review.

Restructuring is most commonly applied to term loans, in particular customer finance loans.

* The Total amount of loans refers to principal plus interest net of impairment allowance.

Impairment assessment

The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment include whether any payments of
principal or interest are overdue by more than 90 days or whether there are any known
difficulties in the cash flows of counterparties, credit rating downgrades, or infringement of the
original terms of the contract. The Bank addresses impairment assessment in two areas:
individually assessed allowances and collectively assessed allowances.

Individually assessed allowances

The Bank determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant loan or
advance on an individual basis. ltems considered when determining allowance amounts include
the sustainability of the counterparty's business plan, its ability to improve performance once a
financial difficulty has arisen, projected receipts and the expected payout should bankruptcy
ensue, the availability of other financial support, the realizable value of collateral and the timing
of the expected cash flows. Impairment allowances are evaluated at each reporting date.

Collectively assessed allowances

Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans and advances that are not individually
significant (including credit cards, residential mortgages and unsecured consumer lending) and
for individually significant loans and advances that have been assessed individually and found
not to be impaired.

Allowances are evaluated separately at each reporting date.

The collective assessment is made for groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, in order
to determine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for-which there is
objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident in the individual loans assessments.
The collective assessment takes account of data from the loan portfolio such as historical
losses on the portfolio, PDs, collateral coverage, industry sector etc.

Financial guarantees and letters of credit are assessed and provisions are made in a similar
manner as for loans.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

(Al amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Commitments and guarantees

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various irrevocable
commitments and contingent liabilities. Even though these obligations may not be recognized
on the statement of financial position, they do contain credit risk and are therefore part of the

overall risk of the Bank.

The table below shows the Bank's credit risk exposure for commitments and guarantees.

The maximum exposure to credit risk relating to a financial guarantee is the maximum amount
the Bank could have to pay if the guarantee is called on. The maximum exposure to credit risk

relating to a loan commitment is the full amount of the commitment.

2011 2010
*Guarantees issued to banks 106,016,284 78,301,336
*Guarantees issued to customers 381,599,745 165,783,423
*** Commitments to lend _ 368,502,514 308,020,051
Letters of credit - 2,280,473
856,118,543 554,385,283

Notes:
* Includes Letters of Guarantee granted to Banks (Intra Group)

** Includes Letters of Guarantee and Commitments to Lend related to Letters of Guarantee,

granted to customers
*** Includes Commitments to Lend, related to loans, granted to customers
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
34.3 Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Bank might be unable to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk,
management has arranged diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and
adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows
and liquidity on regular basis. The Bank has developed internal control processes and
contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected
cash flows and the availability of high liquid assets which could be used to secure additional
funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of eligible assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the
event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. The Bank also has EUR 100,000,000 money
market limit with Intesa Sanpaole S.p.A. Milan and a committed back-up line of credit in amount
of EUR 50,000,000 from Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milan that it can access to meet liquidity needs
in case of a liquidity crisis. In accordance with the Bank’s policy the liquidity position is assessed
and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to
both the market in general and specifically to the Bank. The ratios during the year were as
follows:

Liquidity ratios 2011 2010
Advances to deposit ratios
Year-end 122,36% 123,06%
Maximum 167,50% 130,09%
Minimum 117,74% 105,08%
Average - 137,30% 114,36%

The Bank stresses the importance of current accounts and savings accounts as a source of
funds to finance lending to customers. They are monitored using the advances to deposit ratio,
which compares loans and advances to customers as a percentage of core customer current
and savings accounts, together with term funding with a remaining term to maturity in excess of
one year.

Net liquid assets to customer liabilities ratios 2011 2010
Year-end 56,26% 22,43%
Maximum 57,28% 32,06%
Minimmum 16,29% 12,92%
Average 41,77% 22,37%

Net liquid assets are liquid assets less all funds maturing in the next 30 days from wholesale
market sources and from customers who are deemed to be professional.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities as
at 31 December 2010. Derivatives are shown by their contractual maturity.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 : :

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

34.4 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate due fo changes in market variables such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

The Bank does not hold Trading Porifolios.

The market risk for the Banking Book is monitored based on a Value-at-Risk (VaR)
methodology regarding Foreign Exchange risk and sensitivity analysis for the Interest Rate risk.

34.4.1 Foreign Exchange risk
Var Assumptions

For year 2010 and 2011, the VaR that the Bank measures is based on historical P&L and one
day holding period, in line with the Group methodology.

Since VaR is an integral part of the Bank’s market risk management, VaR limits have been
established for all Banking Book and the exposure is monitored on a daily basis.

FX VaR EQ RON

2011 - 31 December 191,247
2011 - Average daily 186,236
2011 -Highest 380,915
2011 -Lowest 4,732

2010 - 31 December 53,699
2010 - Average daily 25,734
2010 -Highest 203,830

2010 -Lowest 2,593

Back-testing

The methodology for VaR calculation has been changed in October 2008. In compliance with
that Var is calculated taking into account the historical evolution of P&L. '

The Bank performs back-testing by comparing daily profits and losses with the estimates
derived from the Bank’s VaR model.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherw.'se stated)

34, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

34.4.2 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Bank has established limits on the Banking
Book interest rate gaps. In accordance with the Bank's policy, positions are monitored on a
regular basis.

The following table presents the interest rate risk of the Bank based on the Shift Sensitivity
indicator for +/- 25 basis points for 2010, and for 2011 was utilised a new shock +/-100 basis
points . The Bank is considering a probable change of interest rate with a multiplier of +/-25 or
+/- 100 basis points.

It is assumed that the interest rates will change, with all other variables held constant. The table
below is presenting the impact over the gap between assets and liabilities bearing interest rate
risk.

Interest rate Sensitivity 2011

Increase in

Currency et 0-18m  19-36m 35y 510y 1015y >15y
RON RON RON RON RON RON
RON +100 -1,139,403 -353,144 -2,335,571 -818,741 -141,025 -187,261
EUR +100 4,763,837 -1,205398 -2,373,186 -7,489,825 -7,457,206 -11,033,823
CHF +100 5,415 -9,482 -20,348 -68,525 -67,711 -78,257
usp +100 85,697 -2,719 -3,965 4068 -7,520 o
Others +100 140 0 0 0 0 0
Interest rate Sensitivity 2010
curency | Bee " 0-18m  19.36m 35y  5f0y 1048y >15y
RON RON RON RON RON RON
RON +25 -65,580 10,008 -52,262 -38,532 -20,871 -23,156
EUR +25 699,983 -433,229 -417,587  -1,272,168 -1,082,929 -1,333,729
CHF +25 -1,866 -2,445 -5,551 . -17,852 -13,425 -14,237
usD +25 5,857 -847 -1,244 197 -1,643 -
Others +25 2 - - - - -

Please note that for the impact on P&L and Equity of the interest rate sensitivity analysis, for
2011 was applied a new shock, +/~ 100 basis points instead of +/-25 basis points. The new
results and the old one are presented in the table below:
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 .
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

Increase (decrease) in Sensitivity of profit Sensitivity of profit Increase (decrease) in
basis points and loss 2011 and loss 2010 basis points
+50 8,983,838 848,032 +25
+100 17,943,643 1,696,239 +50
-50 -9,009,063 -847,856 -25
-100 -18,054,056 -1,695,538 -50

[nterest rate risk
The Bank’s assets and liabilities are included at carrying amount and categorized by the
contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPACLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwrse stated)

34, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Currency risk — FX Position

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Bank has set limits on positions by currency. In accordance with
the Bank’s policy, positions are monitored on a daily basis.

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Bank had significant exposure at 31
December 2010. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the
currency rate against RON, with all the other variables held constant on the income statement
(due to the fair value of currency sensitivity non-trading monetary assets and liabilities) and
equity. A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in income statement or
equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

Effect in the income statement

Currency Changes (%) 2011 2010

EUR +10 50,500,345 50,989,909
usD +10 (4,839,626) (9,348,567)
OTHER +10 561,478 467,585
TOTAL Effect +10% 46,222,197 42,108,927

Effect in the income statement

Currency Changes (%) 2011 2010

EUR -10 (50,500,345) (50,989,909)
usD -10 4,839,626 9,348,567
OTHER -10 (561,478) (467,585)
TOTAL Effect -10% (46,222,197) {42,108,927)

34.5 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or
external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead fo financial loss. The Bank cannot
expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavors to manage these risks through a
control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include
effective segregation of duties, access, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

[

35. CAPITAL

The Bank maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business.
The adequacy of the Bank’'s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and
ratios established by the Basel Commitiee on Banking Supervision (BIS rules/ratios) and
adopted by the National Bank of Romania in supervising the Bank.

During the past year, the Bank had complied with its externally imposed capital requirements
(2008: the same).

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies
with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Bank maintains strong credit ratings
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.

Actual *Required Actual *Required

Regulatory capital 2011 20M 2010 2010

Tier 1 Capital 518,717,239 330,797,766

Tier 2 capital 59.439.440 72,866,681

*Total capital 578,156,679 230,278,500 403,664,447 219,342,157
Risk weightfed assets 2,878,481,246 2,741,776,961

Tier 1 capital ratio 18.02% 12.07%

Total capital ratio 20.08% 14.72%

Regulatory capital consists of Tier 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium,
retained earnings including current year profit, legal reserves net of taxes and deductions for
items such as intangible assets, holdings in other credit and financial institutions amounting to
more than 10% of their capital and subordinated claims in other credit and financial institutions
in which holdings exceed 10% of their capital.

The other component of regulatory capital is Tier 2 capital, which includes subordinated long
term debt, reserves to valuation differences in property, plant and equipment transferred fo
additional own funds, and deductions for holdings in other credit and financial institutions
amounting to more than 10% of their capital and subordinated claims in other credit and
financial institutions in which holdings exceed 10% of their capital

Certain adjustments are made to IFRS-based resulis and reserves, as prescribed by the
Centiral Bank of Romania.

*The Capital is calculated according to the NBR Regulation no. 18/2006 on IFRS data.
**Represents the capital requirement for credit risk, market risk and operational risk calculated
according to the NBR Regulation no. 13/2006 with subsequent changes on IFRS data.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2011 .
(All amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”}, unless otherwise stated)

36, EVENTS AFTER BALANCE-SHEET DATE

Bank will make all the legal steps to obtain de authorization from the National Bank of
Romanian for merger with the Bank CR Firenze Romania.
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B.C. INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
Accounting & Balance Sheet Dept

BALANCE SHEET *
as at 31.12.2011

- RON /000 -
Closing balance :
ASSETS 31.12.2010 restated 31/12/2011

10|Cash and cash equivalents 57.056 60.067

a) Cash and cash equivalents 57.056 60.067

b) On demand deposits with Central Bank - -
20|Financial assets held for trading 11 196

a) HFT loans - -

b) HFT financial derivatives (with positive value) 11 196
30|Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss - E
40(Financial assets available for sale 149.098 385.113

a) AFS debt securities 148.843 384.842

b) AFS equity securities 256 271
50(Investments held to maturity - E
60|Due from banks 647.194 654.918

a) Loans to banks 194.734 156.765

b) Loans to Central Bank 452.460 498.153
70(Loans to customers 2.956.323 3.042.127

a) Performing loans 2.607.621 2.544.547

b) Non Performing loans 348.702 497.579
80|Positive value of hedging derivatives - E
90|Changes in fair value of assets in hedged portfolios (+/-) - E
100|Equity investments 8.746 8.746
120|Property and equipment 109.836 119.337

a) Land 6.462 11.937

b) Buildings 87.797 93.136

c) Fixtures and fittings 25 0)

d) Electrical equipment 5.787 5.953

e) Other tangible assets 9.765 8.311
130(Intangible assets 11.437 9.495

a) software yet to be implemented 861 573

b) software in use 10.573 8.922

c) limited duration 2 -
140|Tax assets 2.884 17.745

a) tax assets - current - -

b) tax assets - deferred 2.884 17.745
160|Other assets 12.657 16.989

a) Other assets and prepaid expenses 12.472 16.747

b) Accrued interest 185 242
Total Assets 3.955.242 4.314.732

*) according IAS-IFRS

GENERAL MANAGER

EZIO SALVAI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CATELLO DE SIMONE




B.C. INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
Accounting & Balance Sheet Dept

BALANCE SHEET *
as at 31.12.2011

- RON /000 -

LIABILITIES

Closing balance

31.12.2010 restated 31/12/2011

10

Due to banks

1.790.056 1.496.615

20

Due to customers
a) Current accounts
b) Time deposits

c¢) Other debts

1.508.765 1.859.542
250.846 261.299
1.257.665 1.597.750
254 493

30

Securities issued

40

Financial liabilities held for trading

50

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss

60

Hedged derivatives

70

Changes in fair value of liabilities in hedged portfolios (+/-)

80

Tax liabilities
a) Tax liabilities - current
b) Tax liabilities - deferred

90

Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale

100

Other liabilities
a) Other Liabilities and deferred income
b) Accrued expenses

11.654 17.730

110

Provision for employee termination indemnities

120

Provision for risks and charges
a) Provision for personnel charges
b) Provision for other charges
¢) Provision for legal disputes
d) Provision for guarantees issued

17.445 16.802
6.534
4.966
2.106

3.838

8.709
2.180
1.806
4.107

130

Technical reserves

140

Valuation reserves

a) Financial assets available for sale
b) Tangible assets

¢) Valuation reserve-cash flow hedge

191 15
191 15

(0) (0)

150

Redeemable shares

160

Equity instruments

170

Reserves

a) Legal reserves

b) Other reserves

c) Loss carried forward

3.069 (40.913)

6.198
10.982
(14.111)

6.198
10.998
(58.109)

180

Share premium reserve

251.629 251.629

190

Share capital

416.286 854.286

200

Own Shares (-)

210

Minority interest (+/-)

220

Profit (loss) for the period (+/-)

(43.998) (141.023)

Total Liabilities

3.955.242 4.314.732

*) according IAS-IFRS

GENERAL MANAGER

EZIO SALVAI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CATELLO DE SIMONE




B.C. INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A
Accounting & Balance Sheet Dept

GUARANTEES GRANTED AND COMMITMENTS

as at 31.12.2011

- RON/000 -
Closing balance
Off Balance ST 0T Testated 31/12/2011
1|Guarantees issued 246.365 500.537
a) To banks 80.582 106.016
b) To customers 165.783 394.521
2|Margin on irrevocable loan lines issued 308.020 355.581

W

Letters of credit

GENERAL MANAGER

EZIO SALVAI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CATELLO DE SIMONE




B.C. INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
Accounting & Balance Sheet Dept

STATEMENT OF INCOME*

as at 31.12.2011

- RON /000 -
Closing balance
31.12.2010 restated 31/12/2011

10(Interest income and similar revenues 229.764 267.199

20|Interest expenses and similar charges (85.566) (127.780)
30|Net Interest margin 144.199 139.419

40|Fee and commission income 23.165 24.190

50|Fee and commission expense (5.036) (7.916)
60|Net fee and commission income 18.129 16.274
70|Dividends and similar revenues 515 246
80|Profits (losses) on financial trading activities 17.377 15.188
90|Net Result from hedge accounting - -
100 |Profits (losses) from sale or repuchase of: - -

a) Profits (Losses) from sale or repurchase of loans - -

b) Profits (Losses) from sale or repurchase of available for sale financial assets - -

c) Profits (Losses) from sale or repurchase of held to maturity investments - -

d) Profits (Losses) from sale or repurchase of financial liabilities - -
110|Profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value 0 0
120(Net interest and other banking income 180.219 171.127
130(Impairment losses/write-back to: (78.925) (196.056)

a) Loans (77.156) (195.803)

b) Available for sale financial assets - -

c) Held to maturity investments - -

d) Other financial transactions (1.769) (253)
140(Net income from banking activities 101.295 (24.929)
150(Net insurance premiums - -
160|Other net insurance income - E
170(Net result of financial and insurance activities 101.295 (24.929)
180 [Administrative expenses: (124.134) (111.672)

a) Personnel expenses (64.210) (62.720)

b) Other administrative expenses (59.924) (48.952)
190(Net provision for risks and charges (1.303) 300
200|Net adjustments to property and equipment (11.942) (14.102)
210|Net adjustments to intangible assets (5.064) (4.455)
220|Other operating income (expense) (8.848) (992)
230|Operating expenses (151.291) (130.921)
240 profits (losses) on investments in associates and companies subject to joint control - -
250|Net result on fair value adjustments to tangible and intagible assets - -
260|Impairment of goodwill - -
270|Profits (losses) on disposal of investments - -
280|Operating profits (losses) before tax from continuing operations (49.996) (155.850)
290|Income taxes for the period 5.999 14.828
300|Net profit (losses) after tax from continuing operation (43.998) (141.023)
310|Profits (losees) from discontinued operations - -
320|Net income (loss) (43.998) (141.023)
330|Profit (loss) for the period attributable to minority interest - -
340|Net profit (loss) (43.998) (141.023)

*) according IAS-IFRS

GENERAL MANAGER

EZIO SALVAI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CATELLO DE SIMONE




B.C. INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
Accounting & Balance Sheet Dept

BALANCE SHEET *
as at 31.12.2011

- RON /000 -

ASSETS

Closing balance :

31.12.2010 restated 31/12/2011

10|Cash and cash equivalents 57.056 60.067

a) Cash and cash equivalents 57.056 60.067

b) On demand deposits with Central Bank - -
20|Financial assets held for trading 11 196

a) HFT loans - -

b) HFT financial derivatives (with positive value) 11 196
30|Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss - E
40(Financial assets available for sale 149.098 385.113

a) AFS debt securities 148.843 384.842

b) AFS equity securities 256 271
50|Investments held to maturity - E
60|Due from banks 647.194 654.918

a) Loans to banks 194.734 156.765

b) Loans to Central Bank 452.460 498.153
70(Loans to customers 2.956.323 3.042.127

a) Performing loans 2.607.621 2.544.547

b) Non Performing loans 348.702 497.579
80|Positive value of hedging derivatives - E
90|Changes in fair value of assets in hedged portfolios (+/-) - E
100(Equity investments 8.746 8.746
120(Property and equipment 109.836 119.337

a) Land 6.462 11.937

b) Buildings 87.797 93.136

¢) Fixtures and fittings 25 0)

d) Electrical equipment 5.787 5.953

e) Other tangible assets 9.765 8.311
130(Intangible assets 11.437 9.495

a) software yet to be implemented 861 573

b) software in use 10.573 8.922

¢) limited duration 2 -
140|Tax assets 2.884 17.745

a) tax assets - current - -

b) tax assets - deferred 2.884 17.745
160(Other assets 12.657 16.989

a) Other assets and prepaid expenses 12.472 16.747

b) Accrued interest 185 242
Total Assets 3.955.242 4.314.732

*) according IAS-IFRS

GENERAL MANAGER

EZIO SALVAI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CATELLO DE SIMONE




B.C. INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
Accounting & Balance Sheet Dept

BALANCE SHEET *
as at 31.12.2011

- RON /000 -

LIABILITIES

Closing balance

31.12.2010 restated

31/12/2011

10

Due to banks

1.790.056

1.496.615

20

Due to customers
a) Current accounts
b) Time deposits

c) Other debts

1.508.765
250.846
1.257.665
254

261.299
1.597.750
493

1.859.542

30

Securities issued

40

Financial liabilities held for trading

50

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss

60

Hedged derivatives

70

Changes in fair value of liabilities in hedged portfolios (+/-)

80

Tax liabilities
a) Tax liabilities - current
b) Tax liabilities - deferred

90

Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale

100

Other liabilities
a) Other Liabilities and deferred income
b) Accrued expenses

11.654

17.730

110

Provision for employee termination indemnities

120

Provision for risks and charges
a) Provision for personnel charges
b) Provision for other charges
c¢) Provision for legal disputes
d) Provision for guarantees issued

17.445
6.534
4.966
2.106
3.838

8.709
2.180
1.806
4.107

130

Technical reserves

140

Valuation reserves

a) Financial assets available for sale
b) Tangible assets

¢) Valuation reserve-cash flow hedge

191
191

©)

15
©

15

150

Redeemable shares

160

Equity instruments

170

Reserves

a) Legal reserves

b) Other reserves

c) Loss carried forward

3.069
6.198
10.982
(14.111)

6.198
10.998
(58.109)

(40.913)

180

Share premium reserve

251.629

251.629

190

Share capital

416.286

854.286

200

Own Shares (-)

210

Minority interest (+/-)

220

Profit (loss) for the period (+/-)

(43.998)

(141.023)

Total Liabilities

3.955.242

4.314.732

*) according IAS-IFRS

GENERAL MANAGER

EZIO SALVAI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CATELLO DE SIMONE




B.C. INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
Accounting & Balance Sheet Dept

GUARANTEES GRANTED AND COMMITMENTS

as at 31.12.2011

- RON/000 -

Closing balance

Off Balance 31.12.2010 restated 31/12/2011
1|Guarantees issued 246.365 500.537
a) To banks 80.582 106.016
b) To customers 165.783 394.521
2[Margin on irrevocable loan lines issued 308.020 355.581
3|Letters of credit E E

GENERAL MANAGER

EZIO SALVAI

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CATELLO DE SIMONE
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